
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, April 6th, 2010.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, CAC member 



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there will be an addition to our agenda from Hudson Valley Hospital.  It is a request that we take a look at and make some decisions on an amended site access for them.  Currently they are scheduled to open in June and based on things going a little awry the Department of Transportation will not have done some things that it needs to do to complete that access so we’re going to have to step in and maybe make some changes to the plans that they’ve submitted.  We’ll deal with that later on tonight.  It’s to be brought down on the agenda but if you’re interested we will be taking that up tonight.  That’s under ‘correspondence’ and it will be item ‘m’.


*



*



*

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 2010
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I need a motion to adopt the meeting minutes.
Mr. John Bernard stated so moved.

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I submitted corrections last month I believe, Chris.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’ve submitted them already?

Mr. Robert Foley responded yes.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS

PB 3-10      a.
Application of Thomas N. Morrow and Thomas Hagen & Melissa Klay for a Lot Line Adjustment between two properties located at 208 Colabaugh Pond Road and 212 Colabaugh Pond Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Lot Line Adjustment Plat prepared for Thomas N. Morrow and Thomas Hagen & Melissa Klay” by Stephen R. Miller, P.L.S. dated February 18, 2010.
Ms. Susan Todd stated Madame Chairwoman I would like to make a motion that we adopt Resolution #22-10 granting the application, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 10-09    b.
Application of the Peekskill New York Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses for Site Development Plan Approval for a 1,938 sq. ft. addition to the existing 2,117 sq. ft. church building and for an additional 19 parking spaces for property located at 1071 Oregon Road as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Civil Site Plans for Peekskill Kingdom Hall Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses” prepared by CHA, dated December 22, 2009.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairman I move that we adopt Resolution #22-10 approving the application, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 9-06      c.
Application of W. Lance Wickel for Final Plat approval for a 3 lot major subdivision of a 4.59 acre parcel for a proposed building lot for property located on the east side of Lafayette Avenue approximately 250 feet south of Greenlawn Road as shown on a plat entitled “Subdivision Plat prepared for W. Lance Wickel” prepared by James Seaboldt, PLS latest revision dated December 1, 2009 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Integrated Plot Plan for W. Lance Wickel” prepared by Tim Cronin, III, P.E. latest revision dated November 30, 2009.
Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we approve Resolution #22-10 with the accompanying 8 conditions, seconded. " 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’re just going to modify condition #8 taking out the words about depositing in an escrow account and put something in about “shall pay the appropriate – pay the Town in an amount not to exceed $1,000.”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the $1,000 will stay.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’re just going to take out the “escrow account” phrase.

Mr. Robert Foley stated amended.

With all in favor saying "aye.

PB 6-04      d.
Application of Brian Khan for Final Plat approval for a 2 lot minor subdivision of 4.15 acres located on the west side of Lexington Avenue, approximately 400 feet north of John Street as shown on a Final Plat entitled “Final Subdivision of Property prepared for Brian Khan and Roberta Khan” prepared by Daniel Merritts, PLS latest revision dated November 30, 2009 and a 4 page set of drawings entitled “2 Lot Subdivision for Brian Khan” prepared by Joel Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated January 18, 2010.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we approve Resolution #24-10, seconded.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’re going to make the same change to the tree condition on that Resolution.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked that would be 9?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

With all in favor saying "aye."

PB 14-06    e.
Application of Richard Heinzer for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 2 lot minor subdivision of a 39,480 sq. ft. parcel of land located on the east side of Crumb Place, approximately 200 feet south of Ogden Avenue, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Prepared for Richard Heinzer” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2009 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Conditions Plan” prepared by James DeLalia, RLA, latest revision dated November 17, 2008.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have been requested to hold off on this last Resolution.  
Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m recused.  Should I remain in the room?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re not probably going to discuss it I don’t think.  Stay.

Mr. John Klarl stated you can stay.

Ms. Loretta Taylor continued his attorney has asked that we grant them the courtesy of holding off on this until he arrives.  He has another engagement at this moment, I’m sure it’s work related.  He will not be here until about 9:30 p.m. so we have at least an hour to wait for him and we’ll come back to this one as a courtesy to him.  He’s worked this for a very long time. 

Continued 

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I recuse myself from this. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I had to be at a public hearing before the Town Board in Yorktown that started before this meeting.  I apologize.  I appreciate the fact that you held this item over until our whole team could be here. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a Resolution 25-10.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated before I do it on the question I have a couple of comments.  On page 2 where there’s a “whereas Town contract for snowplowing;” I’m trying to determine what the purpose of making the statement is that the plows are too large to maneuver through the streets and are required to back up.  Why do we state it that way?  The problem is that street is narrow and that the plows are not large enough to do the proper snow removal job.  What’s the purpose of stating it is my question?

Ms. Loretta Taylor aksed you’re on page 2 you said?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded yes, 25-10 right?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked at which “whereas?”  1, 2, 3?
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded the 5th “whereas.”  The 5th and the 6th one actually.  Can’t we just say that the Town has determined that the street is not sufficiently wide to provide proper snow clearing and garbage removal.  It’s maybe just a personal thing but it’s just.  Anybody have any comment on that or anybody feel the same way?  If not I’ll take it back.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the thought was to explain that the narrowness and the difficulty of the road in putting additional units at the end of such a road.  It can be rewritten or struck.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I took it as illustrative of the issues associated with…

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s kind of like putting flesh on the bone.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated then I would add something to “and therefore it is concluded that the street is too narrow” or “the street is too narrow to do proper snow removal and garbage removal.”  Just an “and therefore” to it at the end and maybe combine “the garbage truck is required to…”
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked combine 4 and 5?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded yes combine 4 and 5 “and therefore the Town has concluded that the street is too narrow to perform proper and safe snow removal.”  Page 4 just before we get to the first “whereas” I thought it would be good to add “talk about additional disturbance from future” I’m just repeating this here “additional disturbance from future homeowners as possible because a present owner of the property opposed the imposition of a limited disturbance find approximating that we were to propose homes and the removal of such a significant number of trees can pose an increased risk of erosion and sedimentation.”  Could we add “increased risk of flooding, erosion and sedimentation?”  Further down on that page, my last item, is the second to last “whereas” there’s a pronoun there “per the director will perform final services felt that her concerns.”  I don’t think that we’ve established to say her or him, it should be “their concerns…”
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated okay.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that’s all.  I just also want to state for the record that I am changing my vote on this to a vote to support this denial.  I voted last time as part of the tie for the application however I thought about this quite a bit.  I’ve carefully read through the Resolution and other supporting material and in good conscience I must vote to support the denial at this point.  That’s going to be my vote.  With that I make a motion to adopt Resolution 25-10 which denies the application, seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked all in favor “aye” opposed “no.”  We will need a poll.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mr. Kline; aye, Mr. Kessler; no, Mr. Bianchi; aye, Chairperson Taylor; aye, Mr. Bernard; aye, Ms. Todd; aye, motion carries 5 to 1. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just for the record and I at least can say I’m consistent in my voting.  I still believe, and based upon a lot of the work that the staff has done that we have more control over this application with a 2 lot than we do on a 1 lot.  The entryway to the property is where the substantial steep slopes exist.  That will not change in terms of the disturbance going from a 1 to a 2 lot they still have to get into that property.  We’re going to lose the conservation easement and as I said and I think we loose more control over exactly how this – in terms of the size of the homes that are going to be built on this property if it’s one versus two and that’s why I voted the way I did.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the application is denied.  Did you have anything that you have to say?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I would ask that we be provided with a copy of the formal Resolution once it’s filed and dated so that we have that and we’re aware of any clocks that begin to run.  I have nothing further to add at this time.  



*



*



*

PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 1-07      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of  a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road, as shown on a  drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” Preliminary Plat,  Proposed Subdivision of Upland Estates” , and “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan”, latest revision dated August 20, 2009, and “Watershed Map” dated August 19, 2009 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009 (THIS PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE ADJOURNED AT THE REQUEST OF THE TOWN’S OUTSIDE LEGAL COUNSEL).


Mr. John Klarl stated I recuse myself.
Mr. John Bernard stated as am I.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated as you can see, our counsel to the Board is recused on this application and we do have the services of an outside counsel, a Karl Lodes who has joined us tonight and who will sit through this hearing if there’s anyone here who wants to come up and make your positions or concerns known regarding this application please feel free to do so.  This is for the Upland Lane property.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated just for the record, we are going to be adjourning this public hearing to the next meeting as the Chairwoman has said, we’ve hired outside counsel.  That outside counsel has not yet rendered a decision on that critical issue that we had spoken about at previous meetings concerning the right-of-way and the potential building of a new road on that right-of-way.  Pending his information which he expects to have within two weeks in time for our next meeting, the Board will get it in advance of the meeting for us to read and have at that meeting and you’ll of course be here at the next meeting as well.  We will be adjourning it so there’s no compelling reason unless you feel compelled to comment tonight, but you’re certainly welcome to but we have no more information than we had at our last meeting or the meeting before that in terms of this threshold issue that we’ve been talking about. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone among you who wants to come up and make your concerns known.

Ms. Joann Whalen presented herself to the Board and stated on behalf of the Laner’s we’re happy to have the adjournment.  We’ll see you at the next meeting so we can move right along.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are the Laner’s staying or leaving?  You’re going to be leaving at this point since you’re not going to…

Ms. Joann Whalen responded everything’s been submitted.  We need the opinion.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you check with the staff to see…

Mr. Ivan Kline stated the comments won’t get distributed.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you don’t think it’ll get distributed?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded it should not get distributed.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked until it gets to this Board?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded it shouldn’t get distributed at all.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated oh, it’s opinion of counsel.  I stand corrected.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated shouldn’t get our counsel’s opinion, no, I would think not.  It’s an attorney/client communication.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated well, let’s talk about this.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we can have the attorney discuss it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated let’s have our attorney speak then.

Mr. Karl Lodes presented himself and stated I will be rending an opinion to the Board.  It’s confidential to the Board until the Board chooses to release it to DOTS, but the actual memo will be marked “confidential.”

Mr. Ivan Kline stated since it appears there’s no one who wishes to speak tonight on this I’m going to make a motion to adjourn this public hearing to our May 4 meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will see you next month.
PB 13-05    b.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement latest revision dated January 14, 2010 by  Kirquel Development Ltd. for Preliminary Plat Approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 22 lot major subdivision of 52.78 acres of property located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court as shown on a 10 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development and Subdivision for Residences at Mill Court Crossing” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated September 22, 2008.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  Is there anybody here who wants to say anything?
Mr. John Potts presented himself and stated I live at 38 Trolley Road section between Red Mill and South Hill.  My wife Diana and I have been living there for 34 years.  I have some comments regarding the latest response from Kirquel about traffic and I’d like to read them and then submit them for the minutes.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked just for the record you’re referring to the March 19th letter?

Mr. John Potts responded this is the letter you received on March 19th, yes.  “The latest response by Kirquel Limited does not provide answers to the traffic issues that I’ve raised during my talk here last March 2nd.  The response is a ploy to try and defend an incomplete and inadequate traffic impact study that was done by TRC Consultants in 2006.  The count data reported in the recent response letter to this Board has the same bias as the original count data that was reported in the TRC traffic impact study.  Any comparison of changes to the earlier TRC counts and conclusions are just as ill defined as the original TRC study was.  The recent response letter from Kirquel and the earlier TRC traffic impact study reported computed numbers and provided count data without stating day-to-day variations for that information.  Why was that information omitted?  Because not enough real data was collected to be able to determine representative traffic counts or how they vary.  To fully understand this point, let’s look a little bit more closely at what the recent response letter states and implies regarding traffic counts at the intersection of Red Mill, Strawberry and Lexington.  I’ll read a short excerpt taken from the letter that was given to this Board.  In appendix I of the DEIS traffic study text at page 33 “the projected 2007 no build am and pm traffic volumes at the intersection of Strawberry Road and Lexington Avenue are 821, 1,173 respectively.”  A 2009 study – this is unverified – of the same intersection produced volumes of 683 and 925.  Now, a non-technical person reading this information might conclude that the information provided was absolutely true, accurate, and representative counts at peak hours every day, but making that assumption would be completely wrong.  Stating any traffic data without including some estimate of how much it varies from day-to-day implies much more knowledge about representative daily peak volumes for the intersection that could ever be learned from a two to three hour observation on a single day of the year.  Reporting data this way is not only inaccurate and wrong, it’s misleading and that’s inexcusable.  The Kirquel proposal should not have reached the FEIS stage.  Maybe the criteria used to screen proposals needs to be reviewed.”
Mr. Eric Consolazio presented himself to the Board and stated I lived on Stonefield Court.  I spoke at the last hearing and in response to the attorney for the developer who stated he wanted to close the hearing because he didn’t believe that there was that much interest in the development or concern about the development.  We went back to our respective neighborhoods and talked to them about circulating a petition and the petition is not against this development per se but a moratorium on all development on Red Mill Road because of the severe issues we have there related to traffic.  This petition, we were hoping to get 50 signatures and with 50 signatures we thought that we could give you a very compelling statement as to why we should have a moratorium on development for Red Mill Road and the surrounding streets which would include Mill Court.  We’ve received to date 147.  All registered voters, all in the Town of Cortlandt, all along that corridor.  We have people from Stonefield Court, we have people from Red Mill Road, MacArthur, Mountain View, Wheeler, Hood Place, Udell, Wheeler, Hampton Place, Trolley Road, Stonefield Court. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked is this addressed to this Board?

Mr. Eric Consolazio responded I am going to provide a copy to this Board for tonight.  The original is going to be sent to Linda Puglisi.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated if you really want to pursue this and I have no idea how it would be acted upon, it would have to go to the Town Board.  This Board doesn’t have any authority to impose moratoriums.

Mr. Eric Consolazio responded understood.  This is a statement to you as to the degree and the severity that we believe is the problem related to traffic, drainage and ground water.  What I’d like to do is just read…

Mr. John Klarl stated you’re giving to this Board a courtesy copy of what’s going to the Town Board.
Mr. Eric Consolazio responded yes and you’ll actually get the first copy.  We just received the last of the signatures tonight which is why, my apologies for not sending the copy to Ms. Puglisi and the Town Board first.  I would like to read it for you if I could, just what the content of the petition were.  “Petition for moratorium development impacting Red Mill Road and adjacent streets.  We the residents of Cortlandt Manor who live on or near Red Mill Road hereby request the Planning Board of Cortlandt to place a moratorium on the development in and around Red Mill Road, including development of housing off adjoining roads of Mill Court and Mountain View Road.  We request this moratorium stay in affect until the following items are addressed and resolved: 1) traffic volume and safety issues are improved for Red Mill Road – just an aside that’s not in here.  We’ve talked about with EMS and others projecting an increase.  What we’re looking for is a decrease.  We want to see improvement in the accidents there so reducing traffic accidents on Red Mill Road.  Eliminating any increase in traffic turning onto Red Mill Road. Eliminate current dangers of entry and egress from Mill Court and Mountain View Road onto Red Mill Road and reducing overall traffic volumes.  Also ground and surface water issues are resolved.  Bar any development that will increase run-off, ground water flow and/or significantly increase non-permeable surfaces on surrounding steep slopes.  Improve drainage on Red Mill Road to eliminate road surface icing during run-of and surfacing of ground water.”  A slight aside, it has been days since it rained and there is still a stream that runs across Red Mill Road if you drive up it tonight.  “Further address ground surface water issues in and along Trolley Road and examine the potential impact of septic percolation issues in low-lying areas due to increasing ground and surface water.”  That is the statement of our petition.  We will be submitting it.  We very, very much respect the Planning Board and what it has been doing and the work that has been done here.  This is a very, very profound statement by the residents as to the issues.  I’m not sure the last time someone came to you, the Planning Board, with close to 150 people who really believe that something like this development should not go through.  Thank you very much.  Again, I appreciate your time. 
Mr. Frank Priolo stated I feel like we’re in a battle of attrition here.  Let’s see who can go the longest, who can bring out the most people but let’s see how many people we have here.  Every one who’s here on this development in opposition please stand up.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated excuse me sir, can you just address the Board.  We don’t really need a show of people standing.  Can you just address comments to the Board on the FEIS.  That’s what this hearing is for. 

Mr. Frank Priolo asked would the Board like every one to stand up here and say they’re in opposition?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded if they have something to say they can stand up and say it, but it’s really not a show for people to stand up.

Mr. Frank Priolo stated I think it’s important for the Board to know how many people here are in opposition to this.  Is that a fair comment for me?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we are aware, thoroughly.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated we can listen ourselves.

Mr. Frank Priolo stated I’ve spoken many times about the traffic situation.  I think that’s been dealt with sufficiently so everyone’s aware of it.  Let’s talk about water.  Have any of you been out there to look at the water right now?  The water issues?  Okay, now agree or disagree with me.  There is a pool of water in that wetlands area right now at the top of Mill Court.  There is surface water coming out today on the west side of Mill Court and on the East side of Mill Court.  My property, personally, it stopped Saturday before Easter it finally stopped coming off the surface of my property.  If you go to my property at number 8, you’ll see the corner of my driveway where it’s torn up from the water coming up right on the corner.  If you look at, I believe it’s #2 Mill Court, the first house on the east side, the water’s still coming off the road across the driveway into there.  Sink holes, I’m not a geological expert, but I think sink holes are caused by water carving out earth and then the water’s no longer there and the earth sinks down on it.  Did anybody analyze what happened with the sink hole at the top of Mill Court and why the Town had to spend so much money to repair the sink hole at the top of Mill Court?  That was water doing that.  How about the sink hole the exists on the west side of Mill Court right by the utilities right now that just developed?  That water is constantly running on that side and there’s drainage there.  They built this development.  They put in drainage, but guess what?  It’s not working.  It’s still not working and what do you want to do?  You want to put a big retention pond right where that water develops now but that retention pond instead of being 10 feet below the surface is now going to be at surface level, I think it’s hydrostatic pressure.  The water pressure will increase making an increased flow of surface water.  It’s just not going to work and I don’t care what kind of bond – they talked about a bond for a year, well unless there’s sufficient rain in that year you’re never going to know what’s going to happen.  It’s not sufficient for a bond for a year and it’s not sufficient during the building to have a bond.  Someone’s got to come out there and look.  Look at the sink holes, you’ll see the remnants of the sink hole which is still on the east side of Mill Court at the cul-de-sac, you’ll see the remnants of the sink hole there, it’s still getting bigger and bigger as we talk.  It was fixed by the Town.  It’s still getting bigger.  You’ll see the sink hole that just developed on the west side of Mill Court by the utilities.  It’s water.  It’s a problem.  It has to be resolved.  It’s only going to get worse by this.  Thank you.
Ms. Nancy Young stated I spoke to you all at the last meeting.  Thanks for this opportunity this evening.  I’m going to read a bit again.  Hopefully I’m not going to repeat too much of what I’ve said the last time.  At the last meeting I raised a number of issues which to my mind still remain open and unresolved.  The first one of those are the issues in the Evan’s Associates report including their contention that the proposed development will not result in fragmentation of the habitat although many residents in the area report repeated sightings of the turkey and the eastern boxed turtle, the red fox traveling through the area in question.  It should be noted, again, that the consultant made this determination on the basis of five visits to the area and with all due respect to the consultant, the Board cannot and should not ignore the observational experience of the residents in the adjacent areas who’ve reported wild life in the area in question.  These residents combined have more than 30 years on a daily basis of direct experience with the parcel in question.  My second point is that the CAC maintains that one cannot be sure that the loss of this area would not have a significant impact on the species in the area and there still remains areas of disagreement between the Evan’s report, which is one set of consultants, and the Coleman report on the environmental impact the development will have on the area.  I believe that these differences must be resolved before any decisions are made concerning developing the parcel.  I, for one, would not actually want to see additional wild life, most especially deer trying to cross Red Mill and having that result in additional accidents on Red Mill.  We all know that at any point during the year you can see numerous carcasses of deer along Red Mill.  The CAC has recommended that an independent biodiversity consultant review these and other issues including the use of the wetlands buffer for storm water quality and quantity management.  You just heard from Mr. Priolo.  I live at 9 Mill Court.  I live adjacent to the parcel in question and yes there is a huge pond in the area where they are proposing to put a detention basin.  That’s just naturally a pond right now.  I would like to add my voice to that of the CAC requesting an independent outside consultant.  Regarding steep slopes and water in the area: at the last meeting a number of residents noted that no consultants had spoken with them or reviewed the ground water situation on properties located down hill from or adjacent to the proposed development.  I’m not suggesting that every resident in the area needs to be visited however, the Planning Board is aware of particularly problematic areas around Red Mill, Stone Field Court, Mountain View Road and Mill Court. It would certainly prove worthwhile to speak with the homeowners who are having problems or concerns in order to avoid any future issues with ground water dispersion and flooding.  Again, this should be done prior to any building in the area.  As a matter of fact, I actually took pictures today of the sink hole on Red Mill and I’d like to offer those to you to be included in the documents for this proposal.  My fourth point is that regarding detention ponds and dry wells in the proposed development I would like the Town of Cortlandt to consider establishing a drainage district attached to the Kirquel development in order to provide funds for future maintenance of said detention ponds as well as providing funds to address any potential ground water or flooding issues as a result of the new building.  The developer’s letter mentions only Mountain View Road in regard to offering some sort of resolution regarding the concerns raised in the area flooding and steep slopes.  That does not constitute a complete answer to all the questions raised at the previous Planning Board meeting.  My fifth point is potential blasting: I would like to request that blasting Ordinance provisions be established in order to ensure that existing homeowner have some recourse should their homes be damaged if blasting is necessary.  These include the taking of pre and post-blasting photos of homes in the area closest to the blasting sites.  My sixth point is traffic sight lines: a number of residents raised serious concerns about traffic on Red Mill and sight lines when exiting Mill Court and the issue of school bus safety.  Stating that the integrity of the root cellar on Mill Court will not be violated in creating safe sight lines does not constitute an answer to the myriad of safety questions posed at the last meeting by concerned citizens.  That was the developer’s response in his most recent letter to our concerns.  Removal of shrubbery alone will not result in resolution of those issues.  I would like to be reassured that the Town has a comprehensive plan to address these safety issues as well as issues related to the ice sheets which form on Red Mill every winter due to continued run-off from uphill properties.  As noted by previous speakers that water continues to run right now.  Finally, I’d like to say that it’s not unreasonable for the developer to want to maximize his land purchase investment by seeking to develop the area and gain profit from this development, however, it is also not unreasonable for homeowners in the area to raise concerns and questions in regard to the impact this building will have on their homes and it’s also not unreasonable for all of us to expect an honest and complete evaluation of these issues before any building takes place.  At this point I do not believe that the questions we’ve raised have been adequately addressed and answered.  I look forward to hearing from the Planning Board regarding how the interest of the homeowners and developer can be met in a way that’s acceptable to all.  I want to thank you for this opportunity to speak this evening. 
Mr. Rich Riberio presented himself to the Board and stated I live at 5 Mill Court.  I’m a little bit down on the information here.  I just moved there two weeks ago.  Being a Cortlandt resident of 13 years, prior to that, I’ve always loved Cortlandt Manor and their idea of keeping green spaces and the environment and not only the impact on the environment but also the lives for its residents.  I did come into the Town to check prior to purchasing the property if there was any previous permits pulled for the property or anything in Zoning currently that might have any kind of planning issues involved.  Unfortunately, I was told that there was nothing.  That was news to me when I moved into the development and thankfully I did have some neighbors that I meant at the move that informed me of what was going on so I am far behind as far as the information that’s concerned but I felt it was very important to come out today and express my concern for this development and just to show my support for the surrounding parcels of land outside of just my own but also the other residents of Cortlandt Manor.  I will be having to play a little bit of catch up and I understand that things will continue as that goes on but I will definitely be looking into the information.  My manor concerns are echoed by what has been previously said before: blasting for these homes will not only cause problems for these properties but also for the nature which I’m sure it’s been spoken of before but the New York State Fishing Wild Life Service lists 18 animals that are either endangered species or threatened species in New York State, not specifically to that property but there are five planned species in New York State that could possibly be also on that list for endangered or threatened species.  The questions that I’ll be looking into are the traffic issues of course.  Red Mill Road is a road that has a lot of traffic coming in-and-out of Putnam Valley at high rates of speed currently and there are a lot of water issues on Red Mill Road right now as well as Mill Court.  The existing water coming from the surface as far as I can see has not been addressed sufficiently by the Town.  There are drains in the existing street that could easily be tied into the underground water system right now as opposed to letting just roll to the surface of the street and freeze through the winter time.  I’m not really sure what’s been addressed by the Town but I don’t think it’s been sufficiently addressed.  In addition to that the water run-off from the new proposed development from the impervious surfaces that will certainly be an issue and also in addition to that, I’d like to know how they’re going to handle any foundation drainage that might be around each one of the properties where that will disburse to.  On a closing note I just want to say that while living in Cortlandt Manor I’ve seen other developments come through such as the Cortlandt Estates which has a main entrance coming in through Diamond Avenue off of 202 and I’m sure if you ask any of one of the people that live on that particular street they were in the older development you’ll get a sense as to how unhappy they are with the conditions of their life right now because it’s basically just a highway going through their neighborhood.  I certainly wouldn’t want to see that happen to any of the residents that live over there in our vicinity.  Thank you for your time. 
Ms. Alison Olsen stated I live on Mountain View.  One of the things I wanted to address was the letter that I received a copy of which Kirquel development sent to Chairwoman dated March 19th.  Number 2: Water Resources: the final paragraph refers to Mountain View Road about the concerns that the people had there and that Kirquel offered to construct a drainage system adjacent to the western property line.  At the time the meeting was held and a number of residents met with Kirquel people at a school district building.  It was brought up that there is a storm drain on Mountain View Road.  In fact, it’s at the top of my property and it feeds underneath the side of my property and is also an easement for the neighbor for his driveway over that which comes out of the bottom of my property and the water just flows out of there and runs down the land which is the back of our property down towards Red Mill.  It’s an open drain.  It doesn’t go anywhere.  Tonight, I had a look at it and it is still flowing water and we’ve had dry weather for quite a while.  Their suggestion was that they would put in a bigger drain, maybe three or four feet and dig up the whole property and put that in.  That’s what they’re referring to in this particular paragraph and I wanted to just bring it to your attention.  The one that’s there now is adequate for the amount of water we get but why is it open?  Why shouldn’t it be fit into a main drain system?  Why is it fed into the back and just going down wasteland?  It’s going to people’s property on Red Mill eventually. That’s where it’s going.  The other thing I wanted to address with you was with regards to the traffic.  This has been brought up a number of times when they talk about the number of cars that the 21 houses will bring in, approximately one and a half to two cars.  We know that each household you’re talking about at least two cars and if there’s teenagers involved you’re going to have three or four cars per household so that’s a big increase.  The other thing was with regards to the school busses.  I wanted to ask if they’re going to have a small school bus which will go up Mill Court for the additional children who will be taking the bus, I understand that this may be an additional expense, an additional bus service and has that been addressed as to whether that’s going to be passed on into taxes to the school to the people in the area?  The other thing is with regards to the blasting: do we know at this point if there’s going to be any blasting in the area? If there’s going to be any recourse for us if there are any problems with our houses?  I’d like to see some sort of form of funding as one of the people and the residents here suggested that can be held until everything is built and for a period of time afterwards in case we have problems with our property, with our houses that would have to be addressed.  Thank you.
Ms. Mary Jo Daley presented herself and stated I live at 9 Stonefield Court.  This is not the first time I’ve been here on similar issues.  We had a problem in my development several years ago which you were very diplomatic about in helping with us.  However, 10 years ago when I moved here I was looking for a new place to move to a more affordable area that was more country like from where I was living down county and I felt that this was such a perfect place and then when I had the situation of one of my neighbor’s wanting to subdivide and I was trying to fight it I found some new neighbors down on Trolley Road that I found out was fighting our development because of water issues that are now prominent in this development as well.  I just feel that if you’re going to allow for this development to be built it’s going to be the same thing.  I was one of the people who walked around with the petition trying to get signatures and I was almost a little, not embarrassed, but I felt badly when I said that I lived on Stonefield Court because I was one of the people who perhaps was the cause of some of the water problems down on Trolley Road.  I would just like to echo some of the other issues that were brought up this evening and of course not the first time they were brought up but the traffic is a huge concern.  The bussing is a huge concern even though I’m out of the Putnam Valley school district I’m very well aware of the situation with a bus not being able – a full large school bus to go up Mill Court which they would have to get a smaller bus.  The major flooding or drainage that causes the ice conditions in the winter time, it is just horrific and dangerous and it doesn’t allow you to get in-and-out of your home for a day or two during those bad storms and I know we’re not the only people who suffer through this but it is an issue and I would love to see these issues addressed that some of the people so eloquently spoke about this evening.  Thank you so much.  
Mr. Preston Appel presented himself and stated I live at 16 MacArthur.  Many of the things that I was going to talk about have been very eloquently addressed by the other people and I’m only going to say that I support everything they have said but there are several points which have not yet been raised and have been in the CAC report and they have been in other public documents and I’d like to refer it to them at this time.  In 2002 the Kirquel development FEIS referred to 200 units to be built along Lexington Avenue.  At that time the Town Board turned down this idea but there are rumors that Kirquel is using a residential re-use Special Permit Zoning and intends to reopen that request and seek to build.  I think that this Town meeting should take this opportunity to ask their representatives if this is the case with a simple yes or no.  Second of all, if this development has to be built it should at least be reduced further in scope from 16 lots to 10 lots.  Third, the drainage which Kirquel said in the FEIS they are going to build would be built on a wetland buffer area which is opposed by Westchester County’s own regulations about building drains in wetland buffer zones.  Finally, as someone asked for a biodiversity study paid for by the developers I ask for an arborist to be brought in by the developer to be sure as regards tree cutting and the correct implementation of a tree cutting plan.  I also ask that any of those lots with a shared driveway be eliminated.  That is specifically lots 5 and 6 and lots 12 and 13.  Finally, there is the question of sewers which has not been raised yet but has been in both the Town CAC memo and in the FEIS.  If this development has to be built we need sewers both for the failing septic areas as well as to handle the run off water which everyone is aware of on Red Mill Road.  These sewers should be paid for by the developer and if the homes on Lexington Avenue are approved the sewer line should be brought down MacArthur as indicated in earlier planning documents.  Finally, I support the idea of the CAC which stated, and this is the Town’s own Board, that this development should not be built citing a problem of water, traffic safety and biodiversity as their reasons.  Thank you. 

Mr. Walter Pinsdorf stated from the residents of Trolley Road.  I’m one of many in this community who sat on the sidelines throughout this development process but I did show up at the last meeting.  Toward the end of the meeting I heard representatives of the developer suggest that we close the process for the public comment because only 10 people.  I thought it was important enough to get up here to speak to the Board.  I think it was the correct decision for this Board to allow further input from the community and I felt as a result it was important for me to show my support and to thank the neighbors of mine who researched this issue, taken the time to participate in the process and to bring important issues to the attention of the Board and the residents.  This is a large community.  Many residents potentially affected by the development.  The reality is very few people will take the time or have the time to come to these meetings and even fewer will get up to this podium and I can appreciate why.  I think it’s important that the Board measure its approach to the development terms of impact to the community as a whole not simply just the number of speakers.  I heard about surveys at the meeting last week that were undertaken by the developer most of them showing little or no impact to development, surface and ground water we’re going to mitigate, don’t worry, animal, botanical life nothing really important to consider there.  Traffic impact is my favorite “no meaningful impact.”  I’ve long subscribed that when you’re considering studies such as these you need to consider who’s paying for the study.  Taking these separately ground and surface water, very difficult for me and most people to understand.  As a resident of Trolley Road I know the recent rains have reminded us all of the power of water both above and below ground.  Most of us have ground water, surface water issues and we have buildings and septic systems that can be put at risk by any change in water flow.  Maybe by itself this is not sufficient enough to be concerned about this project.  I’ve heard people speak about animal and plant life.  Does anyone really think that replacing that natural land with home, yards, driveways won’t have a serious impact on our environment?  Maybe that in itself is not sufficient reason for concern here.  Traffic:  I think this is the easiest to understand.  I thought I heard the number that were only going to be 1.6 cars per home which is just silly on the surface.  Probably 2.6 is a more reasonable estimate but they say it will have no meaningful impact exiting 15 homes onto Red Mill Road and that may be the most believable of the conclusions in these studies because Red Mill Road is already beyond the threshold of capacity and safety.  It’s a substandard roadway, it’s so heavily traveled now that I suppose adding even more traffic to this road people wouldn’t notice because it’s already far beyond a reasonable standard.  I’ve lived in this Town for 30 years; a lot of new homes coming into the Town, a lot of new retail coming into the Town, no new roads.  No improvements on this road whatsoever.  That’s a subject in itself and I know there’s a petition going around on a moratorium but it seems to me that if there’s reason for moratorium on Route 6 because of traffic and issues surrounding development there, there’s certainly sufficient reason to consider such a thing on Red Mill.  I heard them talk about sight lines.  I visited that intersection with my car, made a couple of ins and outs and you only need to stop at the stop sign going onto Red Mill and you look north and you look south and you can see the sight lines that were being talked about.  I suppose the study is based on 30 miles an hour, everyone who travels that road knows that people don’t travel at 30 miles an hour.  I’m sorry to say I don’t travel at 30 miles an hour.  The prevailing traffic rate is probably 40 and we all know there too many irresponsible people who are driving at 45 and even higher speeds.  If you visit that intersection and you look at traffic density and you look at the speeds that are a reality, there is a real danger to the residents that have to face every day exiting out onto Red Mill Road from Mill Court.  Of course, there’s the issue of school busses.  Of course sight lines, the answer there is we’re going to take down some vegetation.  Maybe that in itself that’s not a reason to pause with this development but I think overall when you consider the impacts: water, surface and ground, vegetation, wild life, traffic, public safety, all logic and common sense would suggest that this is a project that requires the careful attention of this Board.  Long after the developments leave this neighborhood we’ll be left with the results and the effectiveness of this planning process.  I want to say I appreciate all of you on the Board are neighbors and residents of this community and looking out for what’s best for this community and I want to thank you for the service you provide and I want to thank you for the opportunity to speak tonight. 
Mr. Rick Cast stated I’m from 115 Red Mill Road.  I came here completely unprepared.  Just offering the lack of support for this development.  I’ve been in construction my entire life and I know what kind of shortcuts the developer will take when the people aren’t looking.  The ground water on Red Mill Road on our property is horrendous.  You walk in the woods after a rain and we butt up against the wetlands behind and underneath the Wild Birch condominiums.  The sewage and the septic percolation down there is horrendous.  I’ve also been involved in traffic control at more accidents that I care to count on Red Mill Court.  The State police used to give me a box of flares for Christmas, that’s how many times we’ve been out there.  The added impact on the highway from the additional traffic it won’t do us any good.  The added ground water, Red Mill Road is never going to see a sewer.  It’s never going to happen and all that added ground water that’s going to come from these houses down to our properties is going to be horrendous.  Our septics are already in bad shape.  It’s not going to help us.  I just came to offer lack of support for this development and sign the petition to try and stop this.  Thank you. 
Mr. Don Canfield stated I live at 155 Red Mill Road.  My property backs up on lot 3, 4, and 5.  I wasn’t going to say anything for a while but I figure there’s one thing that really needs to be repeated over and over and that’s water.  I’ve read a great deal of the various copies and attachments and how many pages are there in this whole thing, nearly 2,000 pages of documentation scattered all over that takes flipping through two laptops and three stacks of paper to follow the thread of thought but I followed it.  One of the things that I find particularly disturbing and – disturbing is probably too harsh a word but – frustrating is that every time anything’s mentioned by a property owner about water in this thing there seems to be a canned response about dealing with surface water that goes off towards Mountain View or the detention basin of the top of Mill Court and that all the water flow is going to be toward the north and that you don’t have to worry about anything.  I invite anybody in this room to come walk my property right now and see the amount of water that’s on that property.  This is not surface water, it’s ground water.  If you look at the soil map that’s included in the DEIS page 85 of the pdf file figure 3.1-4, there are lines along that area that I’m talking about that are on my property which again is north of 3, 4, and 5 which shows the demarcation of soil types.  Along that line of demarcation of soil types right now you can’t walk through there without hip waders on.  It’s not surface water, it’s ground water, that’s where it comes out.  It’s 300 feet north of the property line.  Everything south of this area of moisture is dry and it’s a steep slope.  As soon as that slope comes out it’s moisture.  I don’t want to just complain about my property.  If you follow that line east toward Mill Court and past Mill Court that same moisture is there.  That’s the same moisture that the residents of Mill Court are talking about.  It’s the same moisture that’s running down into Red Mill Road.  It’s the same moisture that causes the ice sheets.  If you go west from there across 143 Red Mill Road and 139 Red Mill Road and eventually make your way out onto Mountain View you can follow that same line of moisture.  Every statement that I’ve seen written by the developer chooses to completely ignore that this happens. Yes, this is not on their property I completely understand that but this water comes from their property.  Anything that they do on that property without handling what’s going to happen to that water is likely to increase the amount of this ground water.  When they talk about increasing the imperviousness of the surface only to divert that water into a dry wells well what are they doing?  They’re pumping it into the ground.  They’re eliminating trees, they’re eliminating the source of vegetation which will absorb that water, they’re increasing and diverting that water back into the ground.  What bothers me about the whole thing is that it’s being ignored totally.  They speak about, as they said the detention basin, they speak about the surface water on Mountain View.  They don’t speak anything about the water that flows onto Red Mill Road.  The actual live stream that goes from my property through 143 out onto the road and freezes into ice then the ice flows. If they increase the flow of this water I’m worried about the impact of this ground water flow on my septic system, on my house foundation and on the septic systems and house foundations of my neighbors.  They’ve said that they would put various types of bonding in place that will end when the development is complete.  I support Ms. Young’s contention that a drainage district – whatever it’s called – needs to be established in this area so that this potentially ongoing problem can be dealt with in the future.  Failing that I think the developers should post a bond for at least 10 years to mitigate any sort of damage that happens from any increase in the ground water problem.  We won’t know what it is until it happens and they’re not addressing it in any of their literature.  That’s what I really wanted to say tonight.  All of my neighbors have handled quite well.  Thank you very much. 

Mr. Peter Daly presented himself and stated I’m a member of the CAC and I live at 139 Red Mill Road.  That’s the house that’s mentioned in the historical section of the FEIS as the Jay Pierce house on the 1852 map.  I definitely have a certain stake in this thing besides just being a member of the CAC.  I also have to admit that I’m the one who wrote the memo that everybody’s talking about.  I’m not going to speak about the memo.  I’m going to speak about my own personal concerns.  It’s essentially the storm water management.  The other day I saw a report in the USA Today quoting Jeffrey Sacks of the Earth Institute at the Columbia University and it was just after the big rain storms up here.  He was basically saying look for more.  There’s going to be more frequent storms, more violent storms, more rain.  Another study was just released yesterday, was picked up by the Times last night from a group up at the University of New Hampshire.  They just did a complete study on the whole Northeast from Pennsylvania up to Maine.  For the past 60 years, they’re not even including this last storm in their study and they’re finding a marked increase in rainfall over one inch for various storms.  We’ve all seen this.  Every year we’ve got more rain, harder rains, nastier rains.  If that is happening than every model that we’re going by, what the engineers go by, they’re going basically by what’s in the books, what’s there but if the books, if the data that’s coming in now and the empirical knowledge that’s coming in is disputing that making that the old data is less before than what it is now than we’re going to have to change the models that we’re relying on.  What I’m looking to see is that any building up there with the impervious surfaces, with the lawns and that which when heavy rains fall they become just as impervious as asphalt, the grass lies flat and the water runs right off the top of it.  That is all going to come downhill.  It’s going to come downhill to Red Mill.  It’s going to come downhill all in this area that is with the wet soils that Mr. Canfield was mentioning.  It is going to keep coming down that way.  We put it into the ground, as Mr. Canfield put it, it’s just going to reach our ground water.  Where are you going to put this water?  I don’t see any plan that seems to be viable for the applicant to put this water somewhere else.  Where ever else they put it it’s going to cause a problem there.  I really don’t see how this application can really work without reduction.  I don’t want to deny them the right to build on their property.  Reduce it, make it smaller.  You don’t have to fill every available acre.  It is zoned for R40.  You don’t have to build on R40 you can build on 50,000 you can make them 50,000 lots, 50,000 square foot lots, you can make them 75,000 square foot lots.  They don’t have to be R40.  So, reduce it bring it down to 10.  The problems that we’re going to face, as another resident put it, 10 years into the future, 20 years in the future.  That’s all I really have to say for this.  Thank you very much.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I will ask if there’s anyone else?

Ms. Donna Bauso presented herself and stated I live 17 Mountain View Road.  I’ve been living there for 18 years in August.  Since 18 years ago, first it was a piece of property and we built our home and in the process of building the home we had to blast and underneath my house was all rock.  Through all that, through all the permits that we had to get we had to build a retaining wall.  My retaining wall, because where I live on 17 Mountain View Road, I’m the last house on the left and on the side is Wild Birch Farms is all around is all wetlands and through my retaining wall we had to put drains in and we constantly have water flowing through that.  I have pictures of it on my camera, I didn’t print them out, but it’s constant it’s not only because of the weather we had, it’s constantly water that I have dripping coming through my drains.  The back of my property is constantly wet.  That was my concern.  I wasn’t really prepared to say anything but I figured I’d – if anyone would like to come to invite on my property to see the water that I have constantly coming down and through all that all the animals that are on the back also that everyone’s talking about the wild life.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we want to thank you all for coming out tonight and sharing your concerns with us.  We appreciate your attendance and we clearly are enlightened by the input that you’ve provided.  One of the principals is here and before I finish we’ll let him make his comment.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated the only thing I’d like to say Madame Chair is we had previously requested that the public hearing be closed on March 2 at the last proceeding.  At this juncture I just want to put on the record that the applicant does not consent to any further continuation of the public hearing under 276 subparagraph 8 of the Town Law which has been incorporated into the Town Code under section 265-8, specifically you may recall that the public hearings on the preliminary plat and the DEIS began in 2007.  On October 2, 2007 Madame Chair you made a motion to close the SEQRA portion of the joint hearing but not the hearing on the preliminary plat.  Frankly, each time that public hearing issue has been continued and in fairness with the tacit consent of the applicant in an effort to cooperate in the process.  The subparagraph 8 of the Town Law section 276 says that the 120 day time period for the closure of the preliminary plat public hearing can be extended with the consent of the applicant which we have done.  That consent is no longer available.  In fact we’re reserving all rights from this point forward to request that the Planning Board comply with the time requirement set forth in Town Law section 276 and specifically because the Town Board conducted a joint public hearing on both the DEIS and the preliminary plat, section 5-276 of the Town Law actually requires that within 30 days of the filing of the FEIS which was accepted by this Board on February 2 that the Board “shall issue its SEQRA findings statement and make a determination on the plat.”  Again, in fairness, with the tacit consent of the applicant we did agree to participate in the public hearing that was conducted last month on March 2 and we had requested that it be closed and that request was denied but from this point forward we are asking the Board to comply with the time requirements of 276 and we reserve all rights under that statutory mandate pursuant to paragraph 8.  Thank you.
Mr. John Klarl stated just a couple of comments.  Mr. Lynch is obviously quoting from the Town Law, the State enabling statute section 276 but a couple of things: 1) we have a subdivision application that Mr. Kehoe hands out and I think it has a box in there where it indicates that the applicant consents to adjournments as they’re necessary during the process.  2) This applicant has been treated no differently than other applicants in terms of the way we process it.  3) If we were held to the time constraints in the Town Law other than our usual proceeding this Board would be closing public hearings and taking votes when they think they’re not ready to close the public hearing and take votes and that wouldn’t really lead to a good result for an applicant.  A couple of things so we have that portion of the application I think that Mr. Kehoe has people sign off.  I believe we’ve treated this applicant as we treat other applicants.  We see the need to proceed with the public hearing and adjournment we do and when we believe we’ve heard all the comment we need we’ve closed and frankly if you hold an applicant to those time periods it doesn’t result in a good result for an applicant.  We’ll be mindful of those things.
Mr. Peter Lynch stated we are at this point not withstanding, as I indicated, that the applicant has participated in the extensions and has agreed to the extensions, you’re absolutely correct.  But, from this point forward we are reserving our rights to the imposition of the statutory time frame. 
Mr. John Klarl stated we can do that but obviously I’m sure Mr. Lynch you’re a seasoned practitioner you’ve advised your applicant that when you push a Board to a certain time period where they feel it’s too premature to act that doesn’t result often in a good result for the applicant.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded that very well may be if this were not given an appropriate time frame, but it has been under extensive review by this Board, exhaustive review by this Board and we believe that the Board has had ample opportunity and time to digest all the information and to make a reasoned decision on the application.

Mr. John Klarl stated obviously that’s your opinion and obviously this Board has an opinion. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked Madame Chair is it possible we could go into executive session for a few minutes with counsel?

Mr. John Klarl asked for attorney advice on this application?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I would certainly recommend it. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’m sorry to do this, I know there’s a lot of people here waiting for this and other matters.

Mr. John Bernard stated it won’t take five minutes.

Mr. John Klarl stated we’ll go into executive session to discuss attorney advice concerning this application.
Mr. John Klarl continued after a brief time in executive session. 

Mr. John Klarl stated Madame Chairperson we’ve come out of executive session, I’d like someone to make a motion to come out of executive session and go back into the general session of the meeting. 
Mr. Steven Kessler stated so moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a motion from Ms. Susan Todd which will explain what the procedure will be from this point on.  

Ms. Susan Todd stated Madame Chairperson I would like to make a motion that we close the public hearing and schedule a special work session on this application complete with all of our consultants.

Mr. John Klarl stated a special meeting of the Board.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I think we decided that April 28th would be that date at 7:00 p.m.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s a Wednesday night. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated I would also like to instruct our staff to prepare SEQRA findings, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question either before or after we vote can someone explain that to the public who is here.  Explain the findings and what may proceed from there. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think we can explain the findings because staff is just going to start working on them.  

Mr. John Klarl stated I think he meant what the findings…

Mr. Robert Foley stated what findings are.

Mr. John Klarl stated we have a SEQRA process and that says that we’re supposed to follow the State Environmental Quality Review Act and we’re supposed to look at any action by any Board and to see if it has any impacts on various items in the environment.  That can be taxes, that can be school children, drainage, storm water, a whole variety of things.  At the end of the SEQRA process is for the Board to arrive at a findings statement as to how they feel the impacts were revealed during the application and how those impacts were revealed how they were mitigated or sought to be mitigated by an applicant.  Specifically we’re supposed to look whether or not there’s significant adverse environmental impacts and we’re supposed to rid ourselves of those or certainly mitigate those.  The end document for this Board in the SEQRA process is a findings statement where we make our findings as to what the impacts are and what we feel has been done by the applicant in terms of mitigation and such remedies.  It’s the end document this Board obviously to do a findings statement has to come together, discuss what they’ve learned during the public hearing process and discuss what mitigation they’ve entertained during that process.  That is a document that this Board is going to formulate but obviously cannot formulate tonight since we’re still, as of five minutes ago, in the public hearing process.  It’s the end document the SEQRA process.  

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated to summarize, the public hearing is closed.  We will meet on Wednesday the 28th at 7:00 p.m. and you are invited to come but you will not be able to speak at that meeting.  We have plenty of information from you as the area residents.  You will come, if you wish, and we will in the meantime be preparing our findings so that we can take a vote and come to some conclusion on this. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated at that meeting there will be our consultants, their consultants, etc.  At least our consultants which actually we’re promised for this meeting when you read the minutes and watch on TV but that’s another matter. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is everybody clear on what’s going to happen from now?  Okay, excellent.
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PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW)

PB 11-09    a.
Application of Gyrodyne Company of America for a Special Permit, Amended Site Development Plan approval and a Wetland Permit for a new paved turnaround area with two (2) handicapped parking spaces and an additional 52 parking spaces for a total of 54 parking spaces at the Cortlandt Medical Center located at 1985 Crompond Road as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan Application” prepared by Calvin Black, P.E. latest revision dated January 22, 2010 (see prior PB 13-02).

Mr. Tim Miller stated representing Gyrodyne Company of America.  We appeared before your Board late last year in connection with this application.  This is a pretty straightforward request.  Basically we’ve got a 5 acre site with about 31,300 square feet of medical offices.  It’s been at this situation across from the Hudson Valley Hospital for many years serving the community with medical offices.  At the present time there is 136 parking spaces on this site.  As any of you know who have visited the property and had doctor’s appointments there, there’s often times a shortfall of parking and it has resulted in people parking their cars in fire lanes and in other locations of the property that simply are not desirable or safe.  People have gotten tickets there and when we approached the Board last year we did so with a detailed parking study that evaluated the peek parking demand versus the parking availability and what we determined through that study was that 170 spaces would be sufficient to satisfy the peek parking demand of the site.  We made our application to increase the parking to 185 spaces. Based on feedback from the Board suggesting that some of the spaces out at the end of the driveway near Crompond, near Route 202 be removed, we’re now requesting that the site plan and the Special Permit be modified to permit a total of 179 spaces with the turnaround located at the end of the existing driveway and with that a wetland Permit and a tree removal Permit.  We believe we’ve responded to the technical comments that we received from the Board and the staff at this point so we welcome hearing any further comments on the application.  Russ Davidson who is the architect for this project is also here tonight and he would like to address the Board in connection with signs.  Also, I just want to mention that we have been to the Zoning Board for a parking Variance for the higher number of spaces.  We will have to go back to the Zoning Board to amend that Variance if the Board approves this with the number of spaces that we’re showing at the present time. 
Mr. John Klarl stated Mr. Miller is right just on the Zoning Board of Appeals.  I think the Zoning Board of Appeals granted at the January meeting a Variance of 76 spots from 266 down to 190.  We’re supposed to have a coordinated review but in this case the Zoning Board thought that what they gave the applicant would fly with the Planning Board.  The Planning Board has gone out there and we think that the Planning Board is looking at about 181, 180 spaces or so.  So, we met with the management agent for Gyrodyne back on March 24th and we talked about how we’ve handled this procedurally and if the Planning Board goes to a comfortable number and I think Mr. Miller said a couple of times both the Planning Board and the Zoning Board of Appeals that 170 worked for the peek demand but if the Planning Board arrives at a number that works for them the Zoning Board is going to open up their public hearing by unanimous vote, they would amend their D&O from 266 instead of 190 to 181 or so and the Zoning Board would also be looking for a supporting memo from this Planning Board as to the number of sites this Planning Board recommends and then the Zoning Board would line up with that result.  Mr. Miller is absolutely right the Zoning Board has acted but they’re ready to act again after this Planning Board gives their comments. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I hate to admit this but I’m very confused by this.  I thought you came looking for about 170 spaces.  Am I right?

Mr. John Klarl responded that was the applicant.  You wanted 170 spaces for your peek demand. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated that’s what we [   ] peek demand to be or show 170 on our Planning Board. 

Mr. John Klarl stated your traffic study said 170.

Mr. Tim Miller responded 170 at peek, correct so we have more than we need.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated when you went to the Zoning Board you asked for?

Mr. Russ Davidson stated it was about 190.

Mr. John Klarl stated you wanted to go from 266 to 190, yes.

Mr. Russ Davidson stated we’re trying to over-provide just to avoid a problem and so that’s where we provided as much as we could with the additional lot and the additional spaces along the driveway that’s how that number was arrived at.  It was in excess of the peek demand based on the parking study. 

Mr. John Klarl stated as they say in the NFL after further review I think this Board’s going to come down to 180, 181 but we’ll find out. 

Mr. Russ Davidson stated 179 right now.  We were able to remove the 9 spaces that you had concerns about.  We actually refined our count, found a couple more, so we’re at 179 plus a couple of handicap spaces. 

Mr. John Klarl stated obviously that works for the Zoning Board of Appeals because they were going to allow you 190.

Mr. Russ Davidson responded that’s right.  Just to be clear all the spaces you’ve requested to be removed are removed on this plan.
Mr. John Klarl asked the present count is 181 now?

Mr. Russ Davidson responded 179 and that’s what’s put in the revised count up here.  I just wanted to mention something that came up on initial about signage.  A number of people mentioned questions on signage.  There was a signage Variance granted for this property in 1992, unfortunately, for reasons there was a prior owner at that time and the signage was never permitted or put in place in accordance with that Variance so the proposal now is to remove nine small signs on the site to make the signage on the site in compliance with that Variance.  We’re going to give you a revised signage plan that shows which ones are to be removed.  They’re all smaller directional signs around the building that we feel are redundant.  The larger signs that are placed along the driveway were the ones referenced in the plans in that 1992 signage Variance.  We’ll update the signage plan and part of the permitting will be the removal of small signs around the building. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked does anybody on the Board have any comments?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded just a clarification on the site plan.  When we did our site visit about a couple of months ago we noticed that the last parking space along the stockade fence was quite close to Crompond Road.  My understanding is that you had pushed that back somewhat.

Mr. Russ Davidson responded that’s where the nine spaces have been removed. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked those were the nine?

Mr. Russ Davidson responded yes, the second large sign was going to be required to be relocated.  We’re actually able to keep that in place now.  If you drive past the property the new parking will start after that second large sign.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked sign type II is that the one?

Mr. Russ Davidson responded before it was going to start right after the first sign so that’s where the nine spaces have been removed so there’s a significant buffer area there now.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what’s the distance from -- because when I’m looking at the plan now there is a line going across the road indicating that there’s a DOT taking…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that would be C1-2.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there’s a taking there and it looks as though there’s so much of that that is designated taking that the cars – our concern about how close the cars would be to the road has resurfaced, for me anyway, I’m not sure how much space is there? 

Mr. Russ Davidson responded before there was about 100 feet, now it’s more like 180 feet. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked from the road?

Mr. Russ Davidson responded from the road. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and this is from the takings line?  There is a drawing that says “DOT Taking” if they’re taking that.  My understanding is that they’re going to be possibly using that.  I don’t understand that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated “setback after DOT taking.”

Mr. Russ Davidson responded that’s the setback, that’s not the DOT taking. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the setback, explain to me. 

Mr. Russ Davidson responded front yard setback in a residential zone. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the front yard setback.  That has nothing to do with the Department of Transportation per se using that space it’s just that that’s what’s left after they’ve done what they’ve done. 

Mr. Russ Davidson responded we’re required to show you a setback after the taking but you’re required to park in that setback by Permit.  Your concern before was the parking came out to here and now it’s been pulled all the way back to here.  That’s where the nine spaces have been removed.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I misunderstood what that line actually meant that’s what I’m getting at.  Since it’s nothing more than…

Mr. Russ Davidson stated it’s a setback from the taking line.  It’s not the taking line. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, we’re good.  Any other comments, concerns, etc?

Mr. Robert Foley stated I brought it up at the work session. Again, I know we’re dealing with this site plan and I may have brought this up at the last meeting.  When we were at the site visit I asked about the residence, the house that is there adjacent to where your driveway is and some of your existing parking is, not the corner house where the doctor’s office is but the one behind it.  I was told that the owner or the corporation that owns this owns that house too.  For future thought perhaps part of that land could have been used for expanded parking.  If you come in in the future for another building there you’re going to have another parking problem that we’ll have to deal with.  That’s just a comment and an observation thinking ahead that I had.
Mr. Russ Davidson responded thanks for the comment. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing is there anybody in the audience who has a concern?  We’ll entertain a motion from Mr. Kessler.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I make a motion that we close the public hearing, seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked on the question we a have drawing called “Master Sign Plan” you’ve revised that drawing?

Mr. Russ Davidson we’re proposing to revise that drawing.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it seemed to me there are a couple of typo, size errors maybe.  I came up with 23 signs and roughly 200 square feet, that’s from that number you’re saying you’re removing nine signs?  And that matches up with the 1992 Variance?

Mr. Russ Davidson stated we’d be happy to meet with you and go over that in detail.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated for the next meeting we should have a Resolution for you.

Mr. John Klarl asked is the applicant going to appear at the April Zoning Board of Appeals meeting?

Mr. Tim Miller asked do we need to send a letter to the Zoning Board of Appeals requesting that?

Mr. John Klarl responded we talked about having staff for the Planning Board to write a supporting letter to the Zoning Board of Appeals indicating what occurred tonight so Chris will do a two paragraph memo to the Zoning Board.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so that will be from the Planning Board?

Mr. John Klarl responded yes and it will encompass what occurred tonight.
OLD BUSINESS 

PB 9-09      a.
Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval and a Steep Slope Permit for a recycling facility for scrap metal from end-of-life vehicles, as well as tires, all fluids, batteries, mercury switches, and other recyclables  that are part of the vehicle and for recycling of other end of life durable goods that are primarily constructed of metal at a facility located at 2105 & 2109 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Brookfield Resource Management” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated December 24, 2009 (see prior PB 35-06)

Mr. David Steinmetz stated representing the applicant Brookfield.  My understanding is that your Board conducted a very thorough and hopefully very productive site inspection a week ago.  I’m glad as many of you were able to attend as could be there.  Mr. Malone and our team really tried to assemble an opportunity for your Board to really see the operation of the facility so you have a better command of what our issues are.  I believe you have in front of you some procedural issues for this evening relative to a determination of lead agency status for SEQRA purposes and then there were a couple of things we’re certainly prepared to discuss with you.  I don’t know if you have any specific issues your Board wants to address tonight.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anything that anybody needs to bring up?  I think that the site visit was quite instructive for me anyway, it opened my eyes as to what the procedure was and I walked away feeling like well we really accomplished something worthwhile for that time that we spent and it’ll certainly help in terms of how I respond to the remainder of the process.  I’m very happy I went.  I don’t have anything further except there was one thing I’m trying to remember what it was.  The memo, I wanted to ask Ed, you had a review memo for them and I just wanted to find out if everything is pretty much in synch with respect to that memo.  The review memo that you prepared.

Mr. Robert Foley stated they have to respond.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they haven’t responded yet to the review memo.  They’re working on it. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair we received that at such a late date that we could not make your submission deadline for this meeting.  We are working as a team to try to respond.  You will get a written submission answering those questions.  Many of the issues in Chris’s memo have either been discussed at public meetings.  Part of our Power Point presentation where you actually saw it live in action when you were out there on the site walk but there are a number of empirical questions that were asked and we will put that all in front of you. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there was also something from the Department of Health dated March 10th which I hadn’t seen before but it informs the staff that the plans show parking lot over a waste water treatment system etc and they feel this is unacceptable.  Is that something that you’re working on?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we’re addressing that and we will put that in writing and we’ll walk you through that at the next meeting.

Mr. Robert Foley stated there are four points on that March 10th letter.  Madame Chair I make a motion that the Planning Board declare itself lead agent on this application and that we refer this back and await a response from the applicant on the review memo, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it is our goal to try to get back in front of you for the May meeting.  We’ll obviously be in touch with staff and assuming we meet our deadlines we hope to see you at the May meeting.

PB 1-10      b.
Application of Curry Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan Approval for the modification and expansion of the existing Curry Hyundai/Subaru to Curry Toyota and for the demolition of the existing HSBC Bank Building and the former Midas Muffler Shop and the construction of an approximately 26,500 sq. ft. Curry Subaru/Hyundai dealership on a 5.305 acre parcel of property located at 3025 East Main Street (Route 6) as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Curry Properties” prepared by Joel Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated February 17, 2010.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated we had what I thought was a fruitful and productive site inspection last Sunday and if you have any other questions we try to answer as many questions we could at the site inspection and if there’s any further questions we’d be happy to address them. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked were there any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Robert Foley asked I was just wondering if the Toyotas got moved across the street yet?  You said this week right?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes, this week.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I noticed today the Toyota building’s empty today.

Mr. John Bernard asked Joel I was wondering if the applicant might be interested, since Subaru in the plant they run in America has no waste stream, at least they recycle 100% of their waste stream, I wondered if the applicant might consider making this project a lead project of some status of silver or gold where the buildings that are going to be demoed all those materials are recycled and that the new building that’s going up uses as much recycled components as possible. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded I think that’s an excellent thought and I will review that.

Mr. John Bernard stated and maybe even consider a green roof to cut the air conditioning cost.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded we’re in the process of doing a lead building up in Putnam County and we’ll certainly consider that.

Mr. John Bernard stated Subaru’s into it.  

Mr. Joel Greenberg asked Chris maybe you can answer this, there was that question with regard to the 50 foot landscape buffer between our property and that which we’ll need a Variance for…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded you can ask the Board and then maybe legal counsel will advise. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg asked while we’re doing this Planning Board process I assume we can make an application to the Zoning Board.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I thought your question originally was that if they’re required to have a 50 foot buffer from the residential properties to the east and they can’t meet that 50 foot unless they cut into the properties a certain distance and their position is since they own all those houses they’ll cut into the property and try to get that 50 feet on their property and the adjacent property.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated what we’re also willing to do as Chris suggested and I think we mentioned this at the site inspection, right now there is x amount of feet of landscaping against this residential property, what we’re saying is whatever the difference is between that and 50 feet since we own the houses adjacent to the CC zone that we would be willing to put a permanent easement so that we will still have the 50 feet, some of it will be on the Curry property some of it will be on the residential property and that would be a permanent easement that would go let’s say 20 years down the line…

Mr. John Klarl stated two things: 1) obviously you had the word “permanent” because you can put an easement and the next owner could say good-bye if it doesn’t have some duration, the easement.  You may not control the property the rest…

Mr. Joel Greenberg asked isn’t it so with that easement?

Mr. John Klarl responded it depends what the duration is.  You gave the right word there.  The other thing is we ought to talk to the Zoning Board of Appeals as to how the Zoning Board of Appeals would feel about that type of scheme.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated for the record, our consultant is currently working on design plans for the construction of a right-hand turn lane on Westbrook drive.  As it turns out we’re going to be removing some width of the existing northbound lane directly next to your property and we can use it for a few feet from the west side of your property to help us with that project. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded I don’t see a problem with that at all.  Just let us know what it is and we’ll get our survey as to prepare the necessary paperwork.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairperson I move that we refer this application back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. John Klarl asked you’re going to make a Zoning Board of Appeals application?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes.

PB 16-07    c.
Application of Linda Jean Sampson for Preliminary Plat Approval and Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 2 lot minor subdivision of a 2.99 acre property located on the west side of Gallows Hill Road at the intersection with Pump House Road as shown on a one page drawing entitled ”Survey, Site Plan & Subdivision of Hudson Valley Realty” prepared by Matthew Noviello, P.E., L.S. latest revision dated March 13, 2008 and on a drawing entitled “Sight Distance Prepared for Hudson Valley Realty” prepared by Matthew Noviello, P.E., L.S. received by the Planning Division on March 24, 2008.

Mr. John Lentini stated I’m representing Linda Sampson and Matt Noviello who’s the author of the plans.  We had a site meeting two weeks ago and I believe I’m trying to determine whether anything at that site meeting would prevent us from proceeding with a public hearing.  I’ve been requesting a public hearing for the last several meetings. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I had raised a question at the work session just in reviewing your plan and you show disturbance of steep slopes or it seems you do but your application doesn’t seem to include a request for a steep slope Permit.

Mr. John Lentini responded I thought it was our intention that rose at one of the meetings by my application.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated you show steep slopes information on the site plan correct?

Mr. John Lentini responded correct.  There’s a hatch mark where the slope exceeds 15%. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked and doesn’t that overlap with some of your disturbance area?

Mr. John Lentini responded yes.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated because there’s no – I think once that happens I think you have to apply for the permit and you have to show the calculations of what your disturbance is.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think there’s two things that we would need to know the exact amount of disturbance.  You may graphically represent it but it should be quantified the exact amount and then in addition to that the steep slope Ordinance requires an analysis 259-6 where you have to answer all the questions why the Planning Board should grant the steep slope Permit and you go to the Ordinance there’s a 10 or 15 questions and you have to answer them all.  That would be what we consider the steep slope Permit. 

Mr. John Lentini stated I thought by the nature of filing I was filing for a steep slope.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded technically…

Mr. John Lentini stated I’m missing this information but I did file. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe continued but you have applied for the Permit but we need additional information to review the Permit. 

Mr. John Lentini responded I’ll be able to get that. There was another condition too, I wasn’t certain if you had the latest plan out there but the plan that we saw did include some of the structures and if that was the latest plan I’ll have to put those garage structures on the plan which are slighted for demolition.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I have another type of question and it has to do with the application filing date from the very beginning.  It was filed in November of ‘07 and it is now April of 2010, I just wanted to have a sense of what has been going on.

Mr. John Lentini responded last meeting I gave a rundown of the issues that beset us from the beginning.  We were told to get a tree survey which we did and then when we came back in January with the tree survey we were told that we now needed a tree arborist and the survey wasn’t acceptable.  We went to shop for a tree arborist.  We found a couple of people but didn’t know exactly what to do.  We sent them to the Town of Cortlandt only later to learn that we now provide a survey to a tree arborist to the Town to get a bid and then we pay the Town who pays the arborist.  We brought to a meeting with Mr. Vergano’s office and Mr. Klarl was here, my clients I believe that we shouldn’t have to apply with a new tree Ordinance because we filed before the tree Ordinance came into affect and that’s stalled the application for a while.  There were a number of other things that was delayed it from time to time.  I think the Board wants – we’ve had other site visits, we went through the whole thing then we delayed for about several months that we didn’t do anything.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated like three years or more than three years at this point.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we refer this back to staff, seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated mainly referred back to complete the steep slope analysis, do quantify the disturbance and get us the standards for approval which is in a question and answer format.  I can give you an example if you need it, give that to us and as long as it’s to us prior to the deadline for the May meeting it will get to the Board for their review. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated you’re also going to address John the DEC phase II program.  I believe it has some heightened requirements for work within a certain buffer or certain amount of feet of the Hollowbrook which I believe is the highest quality rated stream.  We need some information in regards to that. 

Mr. John Lentini stated I’ll pass this along to Mr. Noviello who is very familiar with this.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 24-08    d.
Application of JJB Properties Inc., for the property of Homard Prod. Co. Inc., for Site Development Plan Approval for storage of 816 vehicles on a 5.1 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Arlo Lane as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan for Curry Automotive” prepared by Joel L. Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated December 23, 2008 (see prior PB 8-00).

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated this application was before you back at the end of 2008.  There was a problem with the contract between the Curry properties and the owner that has been resolved now.  The way we left it at the last time we were here you had scheduled a site inspection.  In the interim before the site inspection took place that’s when the problem with the contract occurred so we just asked if you could reschedule the site inspection.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the Board has actually selected a date April 25th.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we schedule this for a site inspection on April 25th, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*




CORRESPONDENCE

                   a. Referral from Town Clerk Jo-Ann Dyckman dated February 9, 2010 of the proposed Local Law regarding new Planning & Zoning Board Policies and Procedures.

Ms. Susan Todd stated Madame Chairwoman I’d like to make a motion that we insert the words that Bob had suggested at the work session into the document.  It was having to do with people’s delays being documented and verifiable and then refer this and instruct our staff to send it on to the Town Board, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Bob, you can certainly write that up just so that everybody – did you have a copy of what was suggested?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’ll draft it up, double check with John and we’ll give you one – do you all want to see it one last time or just Bob see it one last time? 

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I think Bob.
PB 6-09      b.
Letter dated March 1, 2010 from William Schunk requesting the Planning Board modify 
Condition # 7 of Planning Board Resolution 49-09 regarding the removal of the contractor’s yard 
for Appian Ventures Site Plan located on Madalyn Avenue.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairman I move that we deny the request of the applicant to delete condition #7.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you have talked to people I suspect with staff and as to some rationale as to why we must deny it? 

Mr. William Schunk responded I don’t know why it’s being denied.  I don’t want it deleted.  We intend to remove the contractor’s yard.  In fact, we’ve hired an attorney and there’s a lawsuit pending to dispossess this tenant.  In fact, the tenant is almost every day removing some items.  We don’t know if he’ll finish that process before the dispossess or after but he’s in the process of taking his stuff out and we now have a contractor ready to do the site work – by the way the garbage pad which was another issue has been done so there’s a new cement pad with new dumpsters and that’s completed.  We really have this one condition and unfortunately we’re at the mercy of the courts.  That guy is going to be out of there.  We have a dispossess, as I said, pending and we don’t see any reason why we can’t go ahead with the site work that’s already been approved. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded because that requires me to sign off on a document that says everything that it needs to be done or should have been done has been done.  If I sign off on that and I know that this has not been done than I’m not…I just don’t want to be put in that position. 

Mr. William Schunk responded I wouldn’t expect you to say…
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the regulation states that I have to sign off on something that is complete and this is at this point incomplete so you really do have to get your tenant and then we can move forward.  I can’t sign off on that.

Mr. William Schunk stated I certainly wouldn’t be asking you to sign something that says it’s complete when it’s not. Is there not any procedure where we can acknowledge, outside of what all the procedures are we are doing everything within our power to get that guy out of there…

Mr. John Bernard asked what advantage is it to you to have Chairperson sign off?  If the tenant’s not out you can’t go ahead with your site work anyway or can you?

Mr. William Schunk responded we absolutely could.  We have a parking lot that’s muddy.  We have a property that looks pretty bad.  It needs landscaping.  It needs grading.  We have potholes.  We have a major contractor coming in to do major work and beautify the property.  Everybody benefits; the neighbors, the tenants, the owner and we can do 90% of it without this particular area that’s affected by this tenant.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess the point is if we modify the Resolution to remove that then it’s possible to sign it because it’s no longer part of the conditions.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated obviously but then the issue would be if six months from now if the contractor’s still there what do you do. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s where I was going to go.  An important part of this was getting rid of the contractor’s yard.  That was one of the key issues in the approval and now you’re asking us to modify that condition with that aspect of it. 

Mr. William Schunk continued we’re willing to be held accountable.  For what it’s worth the guy’s not even paying rent.  He stopped paying rent.  We have no incentive to want him to be there.  we want him gone.  We started a dispossess action five months ago.  We never anticipated it would take five months.

Mr. John Klarl asked is your dispossess action a local court or State Supreme Court?  Is it here in the Town of Cortlandt Justice Court?

Mr. William Schunk responded it is not. 

Mr. John Klarl asked is it State Supreme Court in White Plains?

Mr. William Schunk responded no it’s actually in Long Island.  I don’t know why it’s in Long Island.

Mr. John Klarl stated you said you began your action and I assume he interposed an answer.  Do you know where you are in your case?

Mr. William Schunk responded we’re very close to…
Mr. John Klarl stated why don’t we as a minimum maybe adjourn this to the next month so maybe he can give us an update and see how close we are.  If there’s a warrant of eviction issued at that point.  Obviously your attorney’s driving toward two things: he wants to achieve a warrant of eviction and he wants to achieve a judgment and you’re not there yet.

Mr. William Schunk responded we are not there yet.
Mr. John Klarl asked do you think you’ll be there next month?

Mr. William Schunk responded we certainly hope so but we thought we’d have been there several months ago.  We just don’t seem to have much control.

Mr. John Klarl stated sounds like the Board’s would like you to improve your property but their concern is if they sign the site plan and the contractor’s yard will be here…

Mr. William Schunk asked is there some way that the Board could, I don’t even know what I’m looking for to suggest but held as accountable…

Mr. John Klarl responded you can separately secure that.  One of the ways is escrow money kind of thing.  We haven’t really done that where we take escrow money and you default and then we have to fund a dispossess for a private-owned – we haven’t done that but I know you’re trying to search for a separate way to secure that condition. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked is there someway we can word something so he can begin some of this site work which seems to benefit everyone but yet still not have the ultimate approval that he needs to do something else there. 
Mr. John Klarl responded that’s a reasonable alternative about doing the pothole work.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated it does seem a shame to not allow something like pothole work or basic fixing up on a parking lot. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’d have to get an opinion from John.  We would typically not allow that work to start unless the site plan was signed.  I don’t know how we can be directed to permit that to happen absent of a site plan but maybe John can tell us. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I forget now but there’s something else beyond this work that’s part of the approval that’ll go once the site plan is signed that will fall into place.  What else do we have at the end of this that we can sort of hold back?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I think there’s a soil maintenance erosion security which you have paid.  There’s a general – I think it’s a $2,500…

Mr. Ivan Kline asked my question is what’s the beneficial use that the applicant’s going to get beyond making these improvements?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s the parking of the boats.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded parking boats.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated as I mentioned at the work session I think the boats are already there. 

Mr. William Schunk responded there are boats already there.  Actually, we’re going to remove a lot of those boats as part of this.  The tenants that have the boats now have been told as soon as we start the process of the site work “you’re going to have to get rid of them.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because part of your site plan approval showed a certain number of spaces specific for boats.

Mr. William Schunk responded there’s more than that on the property now and we’re going to reduce the amount of boats there. 

Mr. John Klarl asked Ed do you think you need the site plan approval to allow the gentleman to do pothole work?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded no, I think in a compromise here which I think is what Ivan is getting at is possibly disallow that use until the tenant is gone and until the contractor’s yard is gone but allow the applicant to proceed with the site remediation.

Mr. John Klarl asked you want us to itemize that site remediation so we absolutely know the scope?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded sure.  I think it’s doable.  You might say site remediation I’m not talking about hazardous waste I’m just talking about repairing potholes and other site improvements.

Mr. John Klarl stated like we would do at the A&P shopping center.

Mr. William Schunk stated just to be clear, it’s not just filling potholes.  We’re bringing what are called millings.  It’s ground up blacktop and I think it’s 200 yards…

Mr. John Klarl stated Madame Chairperson how would you feel if the applicant did pothole work and parking lot work, just those two items?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded if there’s a document that’s legal that says we have allowed him to do it and it’s fine and you as a counsel say that this is fine, fine but I will not sign the document under any other conditions.

Mr. John Klarl stated we’re talking about DOTS allowing to do pothole work and parking lot work not you signing the site plan. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated exactly.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked John I guess the question is can this Board approve this by Resolution authorize DOTS to allow that kind of work to be done without signing the site plan?

Mr. John Klarl responded that’s what I was just asking Ed.  I think Ed on a regular basis he allows pothole work.
Mr. John Bernard stated I’m hearing two different things, he’s not talking about pothole work, he’s talking about installing his parking lot area.

Mr. John Klarl stated that was number 2.

Mr. John Bernard stated you’re going to be doing some regarding, re-profiling, you’re going to be putting in base material. 

Mr. William Schunk responded that is true.

Mr. John Bernard stated that’s what you need to do. 

Mr. William Schunk responded we’re not making it bigger.  We’re actually making it less parking spots. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’re really granting site plan approval to do all the work.

Mr. John Bernard stated that’s what you’re doing yes. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that just doesn’t sound right. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated except you’re excluding that one use though the parking of the boats, we’re excluding that.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated except I think that the boats are there. 

Mr. Ed Vergano responded but he’s going to get rid of the boats though.  You’re correct, you’re getting rid of the boats?

Mr. William Schunk responded the majority of them yes.  Our plan is to have boats…

Mr. John Bernard stated he has to move the boats to do the work. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s refer this back and back next month with that…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated be creative but let’s not set a precedence here. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I think the point here is that the boat storage was part of the original approval right?  Exclude that from the original approval and just allow him to do the site work.  That seems to make sense and after the site work is complete, after the contractor is gone then he can store the boats at the site.  That seems to be a reasonable compromise. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked can we ensure that prior – it’s my understanding that there should be no boats on the site right now because the whole reason to come in for the approval was to permit boats and if you drive out there now there’s a bunch of boats parking there. 

Mr. William Schunk responded actually the Town required us to get a site plan.  We didn’t have a site plan.  The reason why we applied was because the Town required that and in the process of applying we determined that we would like to have approval to have boats there and we’re close to getting that approval.

Mr. John Klarl asked Madame Chairperson would like to have staff refer this back to staff?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I would like to amend my motion to refer this back to staff and counsel for them to come back with a recommendation for consideration at the next meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated conceivably come back with a Resolution or something written that may need…
Mr. John Klarl stated and maybe the applicant can tell us what the case is for getting rid of the contractor’s yard.

Seconded.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated on the question then it’s very important to remove the boats from the site because that’s an illegal use of the property right now.  [inaudible128:18] of the applicant that’s it’s important to remove the existing violation which is the storage of boats.

Mr. William Schunk asked I want to make sure I understand.  The boats that have been there all along as of now they have to be gone?  

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded until the Chairperson signs the site plan which permits the boats to be there.  The fact that the boats were always there was the reason you got the violation and then you came to the Board and the Board said “we’re going to approve a site plan that the boats can stay once the Chairperson signs the site plan.”

Mr. William Schunk responded and these boats were there even before we bought the building.  There are tenants right now who rely on – they bring boats, they repair them and then they’re in the lots for two weeks while they’re repairing them. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m confused.  A little while ago you just said that you were in the process of removing all the boats.
Mr. William Schunk responded no, when we start the site work we are going to reduce the number of boats that are there.  Right now we’ve allowed our tenants to basically get out of control.  They’ve been out of control and we’ve allowed them and we’ve prepared them that we’re going to do site work and once we do the site work you’re no longer going to have – we’ve actually told them “you’ll now have two spots, no more.”  Whereas now there may be 20 we’re going to bring it down to I believe the number is 13 or 14.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated whatever the Planning Board approves it’s got to be. 

Mr. William Schunk responded we didn’t know – this is the first time that I’m understanding that those boats need to be removed immediately and I don’t even know how I would go about that.  I’d have to get each tenant to make arrangements to get those boats…we’re having daily conversations with them about reducing the amount of boats.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we have to confirm what the original violation from Code Enforcement was which I believe was illegal storage of boats.  The remedy for that was to go to the Planning Board and have the Planning Board approve a certain location for boats.  I don’t believe the remedy was that the boats could just stay there until the Chairperson signed but we could confirm that with Code Enforcement. 

Mr. William Schunk stated Chris, you might be right.  I’m not aware that there was a violation, that there was illegal boat storage.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I would like at this moment for us to back away from the original motion and the amended motion and go to a very simple motion that we refer this back to staff and then you guys can thrash it out there. 
Mr. Ivan Kline stated we need a vote.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the amended motion was not exactly that…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it was referred back to staff for them to come back with a recommendation at the next meeting on how to proceed.

Seconded, with all in favor saying "aye." 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see you next month.

PB 25-93    c.
Letter dated March 10, 2010 from Geraldine Tortorella, Esq. requesting the 5th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for Roundtop at Montrose located on Albany Post Road.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we approve Resolution #26-10, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 12-94    d.
Letter dated March 15, 2010 from Peter L. Amara, AIA requesting Planning Board approval of a new cart corral and concrete garbage pad for the Bed, Bath & Beyond Store at the Cortlandt Town Center.

Mr. John Bernard stated at the work session I don’t know if you were here during our work session? 

Mr. Peter Amara responded yes I was.

Mr. John Bernard stated so you heard some of the comments that the Board had concerns about having outside cart storage there.

Mr. Peter Amara responded yes I heard them. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what’s the story?  Can you put those carts inside?

Mr. Peter Amara responded actually the way the store was designed there’s no room on the inside.  The store’s completely filled with retail sales and obviously stock rooms and support spaces, toilet rooms and the cash/wrap area.  There’s absolutely no room on the inside for carts.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked would this be a very small Bed Bath & Beyond or not?  Some of them are quite large.  Is this a large one or a small one?

Mr. Peter Amara responded based on their prototype, which is around I want to say 25,000 square feet, this one is slightly larger. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated because I’ve noticed in the other ones you can go inside and get a cart.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how many carts are in this corral?

Mr. Peter Amara responded I believe the cart – Chris can I get the drawing up on the board?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I don’t think…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it doesn’t say it on the drawing.

Mr. Peter Amara responded I’m not sure exactly how many carts will fit in the corral.

Mr. John Bernard stated while we’re doing housekeeping could you identify yourself for the tape.

Mr. Peter Amara presented himself and stated I’m with Amara Associates here on behalf of Acadia Realty Trust who owns the property.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the drawing is here but there’s no indication of the number of carts.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it really seems like a small area.

Mr. Peter Amara responded yes, the way I see it if there’s no corral what’s going to happen is the carts are going to be all over the place.  This is sort of a nice – I believe it’s 25 feet long you really can’t see it.  I mean you’re going to see the carts but they’ll be stacked neatly within the corral itself.

Mr. John Klarl asked 25 feet by?

Mr. Peter Amara responded the width of about two carts, maybe four feet.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked you don’t have the plan.  I think the plan says 18.

Mr. Peter Amara stated yes 18 feet but I’m talking about the width, I’m not sure about the width.  Two foot five. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated 18 x 2.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated it sounds like the one like the A&P has near me. 

Mr. John Klarl asked so it’s 36?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that the cart corral is better than having them obviously rolling around like leaves blowing in the wind but at the same time I know just because I’ve lived long enough to have seen it hundreds of times.  The carts look nice when they’re bright and shiny and they’re brand new and they’re parked in there and the store’s glistening.  They don’t look so great in November, December, January, February and March when people’s flyers that advertise the coupons, the shopping bags are blowing in between the wheels and it just looks very unkempt and I think because I was a part of this Board that fought so hard to get a really nice looking Town Center and I don’t think there’s anywhere nearby that’s any better than the Cortlandt Town Center.  The thought of having that mess all over the front of the stores it just bothers me.  I really have a passion or thing against those carts especially when they’re outside.  I think they maintain better when they’re inside but when they’re outside they just get really nasty.  I won’t be voting for it if the carts are going to be on the outside.

Mr. Robert Foley asked your 202 store are they inside at that store?

Mr. Peter Amara responded I’m not familiar with that store.  I apologize. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked they’re outside?

Ms. Susan Todd responded when you walk up to the doors, all the carts – a lot of them are outside.  I don’t think any of them are inside. 

Mr. Peter Amara asked at the 202 store?

Ms. Susan Todd responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and this corral looks like it only takes about half of the frontage of your building after you…

Mr. Peter Amara responded actually this corral takes up about…

Mr. Robert Foley asked a third?

Mr. Peter Amara responded not even, not even close.

Mr. Robert Foley stated after you subtract out the vestibule...I see there’s a wall on the other side too.

Mr. Peter Amara responded I believe it’s 100 feet or 101 I believe, the frontage of the proposed Bed Bath & Beyond and as we know the cart corral is only 18 feet. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re not going to belabor this I may be the only no vote on this Board on that one. 

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairperson I move that we approve this by motion, seconded. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the ARC suggested they have no objections to the addition of the corral however they recommend using the stainless steel tubing instead of the galvanized pipe.  Is that a problem?

Mr. Peter Amara responded actually, I went back to Bed Bath & Beyond the store planning and they basically rejected that.  They said they absolutely want the galvanized so I would ask the Board to…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated then that would be considered a problem.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked why do you think they wanted the galvanized from the expense viewpoint?

Mr. Peter Amara responded the galvanized – it has to do with their vendor and where they get the cart corral from and stainless steel is not something they want.  It’s not part of their prototypical package and they have specific vendors that they use that produce.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I can’t understand that for a cart corral.  Stainless steel weathers better, it looks better.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated guaranteed you will hate the look of it in about five or six years.  It is nasty.  Guaranteed you’re going to hate it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated along those lines you could approve it subject to the applicant working with the ARC and ask the ARC to permit the galvanized. 

Mr. Peter Amara stated I can’t speak on behalf of Bed Bath & Beyond or Acadia in terms of making that decision to say “yes, stainless steel is in.”  I do know they’re completely against it and I know it sounds like you’re all for it so how should I proceed with this?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re moving into our Town maybe something ought to be what we want.

Mr. John Bernard stated I’ll amen the motion so that you’ll proceed to work with the Architectural Review and if you can convince them that stainless steel is not what it’s cracks up to be than you’ll be fine.  I don’t think you will.

Mr. Peter Amara responded I think their specific language, and I don’t know if we have it here on hand it was they suggested, I don’t think they said they were adamant. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they would recommend.

Mr. Peter Amara stated they recommended it so I don’t know that they were 100% but I can certainly go back to them.  Not a problem.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one of the other reasons we’re here is you were concerned about the garbage pad in the back which the Building Department has already permitted t I guess and it’s already going along it’s just we’re very cautious and the Planning Board was never aware that there was going to be a garbage pad in the back.  I think the motion should include the approval of the garbage pad which is being reviewed by the Building Department and the Fire Advisory people.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the application is listed that way but the motion has not been presented that way.  

Mr. John Bernard stated I move that we approve the cart corral pursuant to approval by the Architectural Review Committee and the garbage pad which I assume is going to be for cardboard, for papers?

Mr. Peter Amara responded yes, for a standard dumpster.

Mr. John Klarl stated he gave us a drawing.

Mr. Peter Amara stated yes it’s on there. 

Mr. John Bernard continued as shown on the applicant’s drawing.

Mr. Peter Amara stated excuse me but this also had the curb cut at the front. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s okay. 

Mr. Peter Amara stated that’s okay?  Because I didn’t want you to have to do it again. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 20-01    e.
Letter dated March 22, 2010 from Jeffrey Contelmo, P.E. requesting the 10th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Sunset Ridge Subdivision located on Locust Avenue.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I will move that we adopt Resolution #27-10 approving the extension, seconded.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated on the question I just want you to know that I will be voting against this one. 

With all in favor saying "aye." Opposed “no.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Mr. Kline; aye, Mr. Kessler; aye, Mr. Bianchi; aye, Chairperson Taylor; no, Mr. Bernard; aye, Ms. Todd; aye, Mr. Foley; no.  Five to two.

PB 12-94    f.
Letter dated March 23, 2010 from Joe Dennis requesting Planning Board approval of a new sign for the Five Below Store at the Cortlandt Town Center.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we approve this request by motion subject to Zoning Board of Appeals approval and ARC approval, seconded.
Ms. Susan Todd asked does it need a Variance?

Mr. John Klarl responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I believe there’s a small Variance unless…

Mr. Peter Amara responded it was 5 square feet.  The reason is that the signs that are produced for Five Below are set at the 36 inch height and it comes out to a certain square footage and we just missed it by the 5 square feet. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated close doesn’t count with us for sending you off to…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated not to belabor but the issue of the awnings came up. Is it your impression that the solid color blue awning that you’re proposing is going to be provided by the Cortlandt Town Center or are you doing it separately?

Mr. Peter Amara responded that will be provided by Acadia, by the property owner, the Cortlandt Town Center yes.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I was thinking of opposing this because I’m not sure about your blue sign.

Mr. Peter Amara stated I don’t want to get too far into it but it’s not a blue sign…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we just approved.

Mr. Peter Amara asked but we still have to go to the Architectural Review for their final…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated ARC and Zoning Board of Appeals.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated ARC will be e-mailing me comments and I will forward them on to you and then you would deal with the Code Enforcement office to get on the Zoning Board agenda.

Ms. Susan Todd asked so are you the team at the Cortlandt Town Center, you do all the work?

Mr. Peter Amara responded I’m the architect and she’s with the sign company.

PB 29-99    g.
Letter dated March 24, 2010 from Elizabeth A. Manning requesting Planning Board approval of a new freestanding sign for the Key Bank located at 3000 East Main Street.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I think this needs a Variance and also needs to visit the ARC and I would like to make a motion that we approve this subject to the ARC approval, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 9-99      h.
Letter dated March 25, 2010 from Linda Whitehead, Esq. requesting the 6th six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Furnace Dock Inc. subdivision located on Furnace Dock Road.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I’m recused on this matter. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 28-10 approving the extension, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 24--90   i.
Letter dated March 26, 2010 from John Lentini, R.A. requesting Planning Board approval of an outdoor ice storage and sales machine, propane tank exchange/sales rack and an approximately 24 sq. ft. outdoor sale area at the Courtesy Mobil Station located at 2072 East Main Street (Route 6).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we’re going to have to refer this one back.  There are a couple of problems with this and I think it would probably be easier to work that out with staff. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back for different reasons and including the Zoning Board of Appeals right?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I thought what we wanted was the Zoning Board of Appeals opinion before we proceeded?
Mr. John Lentini stated well the Zoning Board of Appeals sent me here. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated well we’re sending you back.

Mr. John Lentini stated I told them that would happen. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think John you understood that this issue was only something that the Zoning Board can do but you wanted to exhaust your opportunities but the Planning Board can’t approve these things.

Mr. John Lentini stated obviously I’m trying to get an approval to keep an ice machine but I tried to consider it as a vending machine and I tried to consider that it actually isn’t outside it’s under the canopy but both of those reasons were shot down and then I would try to get a Variance to keep it there which was a source of a violation incidentally.

Mr. John Klarl stated you have an interpretation application.  The Zoning Board of Appeals had the public hearing closed, now they’re adopting a Decision and Order probably at the April meeting.  So, you’re almost through the Zoning Board of Appeals process.

Mr. John Lentini stated then they would need your opinion before they proceed I guess.

Mr. John Klarl responded exactly.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if the Zoning Board of Appeals should approve it then I guess the issue would be that the Planning Board would have to approve showing it on the site plan. 

Mr. John Lentini stated I’ll work with your office.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the motion stands, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

                     j.
Letter dated March 26, 2010 from Patrick Bell, P.E. requesting the Planning Board review and comment on an individual site plan application for a single family residence for the properties of Dr. Jane Norton located on Jack Road as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Jane Norton” prepared by Patrick Bell, P.E. dated March 26, 2010.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated if I may give a little background on this.  As I have in the past I’m asking for assistance from the Planning Board for this single lot application which ordinarily would not go in front of the Planning Board, however this particular application follows the proposed construction of about a 2,000 foot driveway and has a somewhat sensitive area.  When I first saw it my gut reaction was that it would not be approved but when I went to the site I can understand the applicant’s desire to locate the house which he has it proposed on the site plan which you see in front of you.  John Bernard was gracious enough to accompany me at a second site visit and after discussing the situation with John it was determined that maybe it would be appropriate to bring it back, it would be appropriate to bring it to the Planning Board for further opinion. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let me just lead off by saying how long is that road?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded it’s a 1,600 foot driveway.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s three times the length of what we normally – do we have about a 500 foot…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the 500 foot refers to the maximum length of road permitted by Code. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated when we’ve done driveways we’ve sort of tried to look at that in a similar way.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated again, when I first saw the application I’d suggested a few of the locations much closer to the road which would shorten the driveway substantially but as I mentioned when I went out to the site I could understand the reason why the applicant wants to locate the house further back on the property.  There are commanding views of the Hudson River and it’s really the only spot on the property that wouldn’t put the house in a valley in an awkward location.  It does not involve much steep slope disturbance which Tim will explain to you.  There will involve some tree removal but most of the trees on the site are relatively young, they’re less than four inches in diameter. 

Mr. John Bernard stated what Ed’s telling you they’re very few specimen trees.  How many acres is this Tim?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded it’s two properties, two separate properties, each are 6.5 acres or greater and it is in the R40 zone.  What we’re proposing is the house as shown here off of 1,600 foot driveway.  Although there was some thought about bringing the house down to this location as Ed indicated it is in a valley, it’s got a cliff on one side – it’s essentially between two cliffs and even with the house located in that are you still need to get up to this upper plateau in order to put your septic system in so you’re really not cutting back on your disturbance and some could argue that it may be a wash, it may even be increasing it because you’re actually disturbing two separate areas.  What we’re proposing to do is if you can take a look – I don’t know the colors are a little bit light, but the reddish/pinkish color represents 30% or greater slopes and we’re trying to avoid those as much as possible and the yellowish or greenish is the 15% to 30% slopes and you can see the driveway traverses those and in many cases is running essentially parallel with the grade so as to keep the slope of the driveway below I think it’s 12.5% or 12.4% is the maximum.  As Ed mentioned, this plan here was actually one of four alternatives that we looked at and with discussions with Ed and his staff and my office it seemed as though it was this one and another alternative that we had staked out in the field.  Once we walked the property we realized that this was the superior alternative and I think John that’s when you went out there to walk this alignment with Ed. 

Mr. John Bernard stated it looked like you had carefully put the driveway on 15% slopes or less.  It was a very careful solution to avoiding slopes steeper than that and I understand why they want the house where they do because that is the spot where you have a view of the Hudson River so that makes sense in that regard but from a mitigation the applicant was there at the time and she said she might be willing to put permanent conservation easements on some acreage that’s contiguous with lands that are part of Camp Smith and/or the properties that have already got conservation easements that I think we’re donated by Nick Angel.  Given that, if there were some acreage set aside as a mitigation for that long driveway I would be a little bit more likely to approve that.

Mr. Tim Cronin asked Camp Smith’s towards the back of your property?

Dr. Jane Norton responded no to the side. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I was part of a meeting with Ed at the outset of this application and we did discuss a number of different things that we could look at.  I certainly have no objection at the fact that Ed has brought this application which is an application just for the record to be clear an application before Ed.  This is not jurisdictionally before your Board and just to correct you John…

Mr. John Bernard stated that’s correct, we have no authority to approve.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated John instinctively did what you should do.  You’re used to having applications and looking at plans and then you talk about approving.  We’re here so that you guys can comment on this and I think I understand why we’re here and I fully appreciate the fact that Ed wants to make sure that you all know what he’s doing and why and let’s be honest with one another.  One of the reasons we’re doing this is because of what you experienced on another application and maybe other applications.  All that having been said…

Mr. Ivan Kline stated can I just clarify, the same person owns both these lots?  And this was a subdivision long ago?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded long ago.  This is in fact, just so you’re clear Ivan, this has been in Doctor Norton’s family for over 50 years.  Almost 60 years taxes have been paid on both of these parcels. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated as separate.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated separate parcels, separate tax bills, separate parcels.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked the plan would be to record an easement?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded should we decide to…

Mr. Ivan Kline asked if you’re going to do this you’re going to record an easement though?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded should my client decide that she’s willing to do it and in conjunction with…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I think he’s referring to access from one lot to another. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated oh, you’re talking about the access easement?  Absolutely, we’ll record a declaration of easement without any question.  We have frontage.  We all know we have plenty of lots here in the Town of Cortlandt where access to a home on lot B is gained by an easement over lot A.  There’s nothing unlawful about that or improper, especially when we’re doing it for environmental sensitivity reasons and that’s what we’re trying to do.  So, let’s go back to the question.  My client is absolutely willing to have us sit down with staff as part of the administrative permit review with staff and go over potential mitigation measures including going over the possibility of some kind of land preservation and environmental protection easement.  There are portions of this property that Tim and Doctor Norton have looked at.  I know you’ve been out there John and have been identified as areas that should remain wooded and undisturbed and we’ll take all of that up.  It certainly to the extent that you’d like to see that I’m sure Ed now having referring this to you is going to want to see someone. 

Mr. John Bernard stated what you said is very important “should remain wooded” and that would be my fear is that with a long driveway accessing the majority of that property if those acreages weren’t protected in some way from further development then somewhere down the road, you said it’s R40 zoning?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes. 

Mr. John Bernard continued so under current zoning there could be perhaps two or three additional houses.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m glad you said that Mr. Bernard because you’ve set me up to say what I believe I’m authorized to address.  We will discuss with staff the possibility of further restrictions.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so what are we supposed to do with this?

Mr. John Bernard responded kick it back to Ed. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated we haven’t given him any direction.  To bring back to us again because we certainly haven’t given him any…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated there’s nothing to come back here for.  With all due respect.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked what’s the point of this whole thing?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if you want opinions, my opinion is if it was a subdivision I’d have a hard time approving it.  That’s my opinion. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I would echo that.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if it was a subdivision I would have a hard time approving what’s being proposed here.  

Mr. John Bernard stated I agree. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I would echo that because again under our steep slopes Ordinance I don’t believe you get to disturb 10 times the amount of slope just so you can get a Hudson River View out of your house.  That would be my own view. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the point here is that they’re not really disturbing steep slopes.  They’ve actually located the driveway in such a fashion that they’re avoiding the 15% slopes. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated it looks like…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the whole driveway is in 15% or greater slopes. 

Mr. Tim Cronin stated the 30% is what we’re staying away from. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that’s exactly what we just voted on on the Heinzer application.  You are probably having a magnitude of 10 of disturbance greater than 15% slope in order to put the house all the way in the back rather than in the front and that to me takes out an Ordinance and turns it on its head. 
Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m a little confused.  You showed me a profile Tim that…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated he’s got it colored. The yellow is 15% or greater and the whole driveway is yellow or pink.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded as I mentioned we’re going essentially with the grade here.  We’re going across slope.  The driveway is 12.5%.  That’s why when you have the turn to the driveway you’re negotiating the grades.  The driveway itself is 12.5%.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated if I understand an Ordinance you still disturbing areas greater than 15% so that as to acquire the permit.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated there’s no question about it because the alternative is and I don’t want to do this right now, the alternative is it’s a regulatory taking and it’s unconstitutional. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated the alternative is you put the house in the front and you have one tenth of the steep slopes disturbance. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated actually I think you’ve already heard from Ed that there are two reasons why the house was located there: 1) is because of views and there’s no question that people are allowed to situate houses on their lots in a fashion that’s conducive to what they’re looking for. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated if you had to cross wetlands to get there you wouldn’t possibly stand up there and make that argument.  You can’t fill in a river because you want to put a house in the back of a lot. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’d still have to put the septic system up at the top and the chances are we’d end up with more overall disturbance.  Tim said that. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that’s a different issue.  That can be demonstrated than maybe this…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I think it’s already been discussed and I thought Ed we discussed that when I sat in your office on day one.  Again, we’re here because you requested that we be here but quite frankly we covered all this on day one. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated and as you recall from day one I had a problem with the application and I wanted to get an opinion from the Planning Board.  It’s a very aggressive application.  It involves a driveway, it’s about a third of a mile.  It’s not absolutely necessary to locate the house where it’s being proposed.  It certainly could be located closer to the road which shortens the driveway and lessen the number of trees that has to be removed and lessen the impact of the steep slopes. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated John we’re here…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think the comments have been transmitted over to staff all we have to do is refer back. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I hear what the Board’s saying. 

Mr. John Bernard stated Ed we appreciate you involving us in the process although I know there are some Board members that are questioning that we’re involved at all because we can’t really be involved but yes we can be involved because he’s asking for our opinions on…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t think it’s going to change anything.

Mr. John Bernard stated I think it does.  I believe it does change things because at least Ed has the benefit of our opinions.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s exactly what I’m looking for and that was what I asked for on another application off of a Furnace Brook Road about two years ago. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated John, just so you understand we’re here willingly.  It’s not like anybody tied my client or our team down coming here.

Mr. John Bernard stated you don’t look distressed.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we actually discussed every one of these issues on day one.  I want to make sure you guys know this because this is one of those things as a practitioner who comes before you too often that troubles me is that when I’m on the front line of an application, I’m an environmental lawyer, I do this too many nights a week.  I understand what the issues are.  Tim and I have done a few of these.  We understand about land disturbance.  We understand about conservation easements.  We understand about mitigation.  It’s really wonderful that Ed referred this to you but please don’t think that applicants like my client and this team in any way irresponsibly approached this application on day one.  To the contrary, on day one we sat down with your professional staff.  It’s totally appropriate if he wants to consult with you but I really don’t want this Board to think that the professionals that come before you month after month are ignorant of the important environmental mitigation measures that are available.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think that anyone’s suggesting that.  I don’t know why you’re saying all that.  I don’t think anyone’s suggesting that.  Tim is obviously quite candid in exactly what this has.  No one’s concealing anything.  That’s our opinion.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s my opinion too.

Mr. John Bernard stated with certain easements on the rest of the property I still think it’s doable that way. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I appreciate John took the time to come out and see why it was cited in this fashion. 
Mr. Robert Foley stated it wasn’t cited with the driveway skirting a perimeter here where there seems to be lesser slope except for when you get up in one portion which is about the same as part of the planned driveway at 407 as opposed to 460.  This is a problem here still. 
Mr. Tim Cronin responded yes I was in Yorktown earlier. 

Mr. John Klarl asked Ed do you think you have sufficient comment?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, I believe I do and I agree with John that I would look much more favorably on this application if the owner was wiling to restrict the development potential with conservation easements and/or restrictions of future development or future subdivisions.

Mr. John Klarl stated work with the grades.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and Ed will take all that under advisement and come back and meet with you and discuss and resolve all of that.  

PB 8-08      k.
Letter dated March 27, 2010 from Glenn Watson, LS requesting the Planning Board review and comment on individual site plans for two single family residences for the property of J.E.S. Land Developers, LLC located on the north side of Colabaugh Pond Road, approximately 200 feet west of Woodlake Drive, as shown on 4 drawings entitled “Site Plan, Parcel A” latest revision dated January 22, 2010, “Tree Survey, Parcel A”, latest revision dated January 15, 2010, “Site Plan, Parcel B” latest revision dated January 22, 2010 and “Tree Survey, Parcel B” latest revision dated September 22, 2009 all prepared by Badey & Watson, P.C.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated first I’d like to say is that the site plans are not labeled A’s and B’s so you’re looking at stuff and you don’t know whether you’re looking at A or B but anyway.  
Mr. Ed Vergano stated let me just give a quick background.  Unlike the prior application this property was in front of the Planning Board for subdivision about two years ago.  The applicant decided to simply merge the existing lots to create two lots which again resulted in the application of two building Permits for those two lots.  I’d like you to just once again take a look at the proposed layout of the driveway and the location of the house, etc.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked it’s one house being proposed?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated two houses.

Mr. Glenn Watson stated this was originally a three lot subdivision application which would have reconfigured about 18 small lots that were filed in the 1940’s.  After we met with you I think it was your application 08-08, you referred it back to staff, we met with staff, we looked at some of the steep slopes issues, we looked at some of the access issues and agreed with staff that we would be better to just develop two sites instead of the three and since we were following existing lot lines we would be in a position to apply for building Permits.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked where is the other house on this lot?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it’s on two separate plans. 

Mr. Glenn Watson stated what we are really working on here are two separate applications for two separate plans.  

Mr. John Bernard asked is Lakeshore Road the little circular road, is that being built?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded there was subdivision that was filed in the ‘40s.  If  you walk into the property they are the vestiges of the traveled ways that were bulldozed through and never completed.  The road comes in from the south end of the property, comes in, goes behind a couple of houses then comes back out.  Each of the roads continues in past that first loop, it forms a second loop and one dead ends.  We utilized the existing lot configurations by putting certain lots into one, certain lots into the other.  We were asked by staff and by the Health Department if we would merge the lots and conform them and make two separate lots to conform to zoning and we’ve done that.  During the course of our conversations and consultations with your staff we were asked to complete tree surveys, complete steep slopes topo analysis, all of that was done.  We met with Mr. Vergano in the field.  We walked down the existing roadways or the vestiges of the roadways and showed him the site’s areas that we decided upon.  If you look, particularly at the southerly lot, you’ll see that there’s a little bit of steep slopes disturbance but if you investigate the driveway route you’ll see that it’s absent, it’s minimized to get to the buildable areas of the site.  We do have a pending Health Department approval.  The only condition that was left has just been satisfied and that was merging the lots.  What we’ve tried to do is take the best advantage of the existing disturbance, the best advantage of the access routes to each of the two sites and we made separate building applications because that was an opportunity that would hopefully simplify the process although we’ve been into it for about three years right now. 
Mr. John Bernard asked is the intention then on those old map roads to not use those, to not pave those?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded we are going to utilize those roads for access.  We’re going to build driveways on those roads and then when we leave to get in the middle of the lots we’re going to obviously take a drive off of that road and just go into the lots like we normally would.  We are not planning to build the roads in terms of making a road in a public dedication.  Although we’ve merged these lots into two separate building lots from the 18 filed map lots and we retained our rights to the roads.  We intend to use them as driveways but I have to say that it would be less than honest to say that there are residual rights for the other people who own on those roads.  The people in front have those residual rights so we’re not in total control of them although we own half. 

Mr. John Bernard stated now you’ve confused me.  So this Lakeshore Road, the circular road, other people are using those rights of way?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded nobody’s using them but there are people who have residual rights including everybody that came out of that subdivision have some residual rights.

Mr. John Bernard stated so the Ferguson home is part of that subdivision of that original subdivision?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded I believe so yes.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked Ed what exactly is your issue with this?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded like the prior application, because this was in front of the Planning Board at one time, I’d like you to maybe have one or two possible Board members accompany me at a site walk just to verify that what they’re proposing does make sense.  Once again I need some assistance with this.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I’ve walked this property because I know both the Bumstead’s and the Campbell’s and it was a few years ago and they asked me to come listen to the vernal pools in the back of their house.  I think you really need to do a good wetland survey because it looks like perhaps one of the – the house that goes up Shady Lane and then crosses over might go through a lot of that vernal pool area.

Mr. Glenn Watson stated the wetland survey has been completed and there was a considerable amount of work done to select the routes into the property including creating a new easement into the property, using two routes from the south using a single driveway rather from the south to go to both lots using a single driveway from the north to go to both lots, different configurations of the individual driveways in order to get around wetlands and to avoid the neighbors.  We ultimately concluded, with Mr. Vergano’s input, that with the routes we’ve selected we’re as respectful of the other property owners as we could be and reduced the impact on the disturbance because we were utilizing those bulldozed roads that were put in there probably in the early ‘50s, late ‘40s.

Ms. Susan Todd asked you have a wetland map?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you gave us this the last time, this map, with the wetlands and the steep slopes, can you now overlay the two houses onto this map which you’re now proposing?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded right now, yes it can be done.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can you bring it to the next meeting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re just supposed to comment on this.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I know but I don’t feel like we have enough information to comment.  It’s great to comment.

Mr. John Klarl stated this case there’s actually an application.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated well there was an old application.

Mr. Robert Foley asked how many years ago?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s only here because it was an old application but it’s really a single lot building applications.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s correct.  Two individual single building lot applications.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can we bring this back as an application?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded no.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated no because he’s not applying for anything.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated he’s not applying for anything.

Mr. Glenn Watson responded I’m applying for a building Permit.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated there’s no approval that’s required from this Planning Board. Again, I’m just looking for some direction. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated since you sent us a letter asking us to review and comment, can you give us until next month?
Mr. Glenn Watson responded I did not send you a letter asking you to review and comment.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’m sorry that’s what our agenda says.  I was reading our agenda.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated for the record, I asked the applicant to send a letter. 

Mr. Glenn Watson stated pardon my outburst but I got hell from my client for asking to come to the Planning Board after three years. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Mr. Watson, if there are two members, or three, or four who want to go on a site walk with our Town Engineer, they don’t need our permission to do that.  We don’t have any real obligation to this since you’re not making an application and since in fact when you’re doing two separate projects as separate units we don’t have any input anyway.  I think that if Mr. Vergano can get a few of us to go walking with him that’ll be fine and I’d like to not bring this back quite frankly.  I don’t see any reason to do it.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated for the record I have no opinion because I don’t have enough information to formulate an opinion.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I echo that. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I echo the sentiment.  Did anybody want to go with him? 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s perfect.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked I’m just curious, Steve, how many years ago was that and how many houses was that proposal do you remember?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded it was a re-subdivision of 16 lots into three lots and a wetland Permit.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated 2008.

Mr. Steven Kessler continued 2008, in April 1st, 2008.

Mr. John Klarl stated Mr. Zot appeared before us and told us 8 and ¾ acres and he wanted to re-subdivide it into 16 lots and 3 lots indicating he litigated for the Town in the 1980’s and he was looking for previous wetlands delineation. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked how far away are you from the dead end of Inwood Lane over the hill?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated this is a waste of time.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we’re done thank you. 

Mr. John Bernard stated it’s not a waste.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you Mr. Watson. 
                    l.
Letter dated March 26, 2010 from Ari Lambert requesting Planning Board approval of a storage container on the property at the Mohegan Park Home located at 3441 Lexington Avenue.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I’d like to move that this Board request that staff essentially reject this request and direct Mr. Lambert to apply to the Zoning Board for a Variance if he wishes to pursue this. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated exactly.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
ADDITION TO AGENDA: 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t really know what it is because I just saw it tonight, let’s have staff explain what it is exactly you’re asking us. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated a little background.  The Planning Board should have two plans: 1) is a copy of the approved site plan.  If you look closely at that it shows a relocation of the egress road across from Lafayette Drive on 202.  It was supposed to be part of Route 202, 35, Lafayette Avenue, Conklin Avenue, State DOT improvement which we were hoping would be completed before the hospital is ready to open.  Unfortunately, that did not happen.  The hospital is ready to open and the hospital needs to revise their entrance and egress area and front parking area to accommodate that fact.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I don’t know if it’s me or what but these last three cases I’m drawing a blank on totally because I haven’t had any time to take a look at them to study them and they’re being presented to us for the first time. 

Mr. James Vigilis stated this is real simple.  What happened was we don’t have access to DOT and DOT doesn’t have the funding.  DOT was going to provide us with a new egress from the hospital straight at the Lafayette Avenue and a traffic light.  Since they can’t do that we have to maintain our existing egress and that’s why we’re coming back to the Board because you did not approve that.  You approved the new way so what we’d like to do is slide the front of the hospital parking over to maintain this egress and just leave the new entrance the way it was designed.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand you need to do that because you guys got to do what you’ve got to do but such a fundamental part of the approval was the DOT work and I know it’s not your fault but that was critical to this whole approval process was this light, these aligned intersections and that was going to make it all work and now I understand they’re not going to do it, no fault of yours as I said, it’s a shame that we predicate something on something happening and it doesn’t occur and now we scramble to come up with a secondary approval or a compromise that isn’t in the best interest of what we’re trying to do.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are they saying they will not do it ever or is it just a postponement?

Mr. James Vigilis responded we’re hoping that it’s a postponement.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked would you have any sense of how long that might be?

Mr. James Vigilis responded it started in 1993 the application with DOT.  They had the funding.  It was in their budget.  It was supposed to be done either last year or the beginning of this year and that’s not going to happen. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if you slide the parking over can you slide it back when they give you the permission or is it going to be permanently blocked in once you move that parking to the left there?

Mr. James Vigilis responded honestly we really need that DOT work because it’s a dangerous intersection.  We do want to provide that new access, the egress road.  Yes, we want to have that back.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you would move the parking lot back into position the way it was originally intended.

Mr. James Vigilis responded I’m not sure how we’re going to do it but I guess we would have to.  It’s either that or we would just expand the lot or put trees.  Leave it the way it is, take the egress road out that’s right now where it is and put trees there.  

Mr. Ed Vergano asked you have the same number of spaces proposed?

Mr. James Vigilis responded actually we wind up with two more.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked for just the front parking area?

Mr. James Vigilis responded exactly.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in other words, whatever we do here there would be a permanence to this because you’re not going to rely on the DOT funding?  It sounds like it’s still up in the air.  We’re moving back and then it may move back again. 

Mr. James Vigilis responded I’d like to answer that question Bob, I just don’t know with them.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is this on the agenda for tomorrow night’s Sustainable Development Meeting, that intersection?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded no.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I feel for you but that’s the DOT.  That’s why when this application was going through review I kept bringing up another way in-and-out of there but that was the Dempsey property, you couldn’t touch it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you would like us to do what exactly?  Approve the redesign?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it was referred back to Engineering just to work out some of the design details, drainages and what have you.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated motion to approve subject to DOTS approval.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated for that matter and also for the New York State DOT because you will need a highway work Permit for the work that you’re proposing in the State right-of-way.

Mr. John Klarl stated so DOT and DOTS.

Ms. Susan Todd stated Madame Chairwoman I’d like to make a motion that we approve this subject to DOTS and Town Engineering, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, so it sounds like you’re opening in June so this has to be done by June to provide a safe access?

Mr. James Vigilis responded correct.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but you still need, ultimately, that better-controlled and safer intersection with the DOT so what do you do then?  Does this negate any future Lafayette – there will be no entrance coming out of the hospital across from Lafayette Avenue?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated DOT is still going to have to approve this access.  They’re still going to need a highway work Permit.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think that’s Bob’s question.  The question we just raised it before is: is the hospital going to have some obligation if three years from now the State actually says “okay, now we’re ready to go ahead” to then try to go back to what we originally approved?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded your motion should be subject – this is an approved temporary solution but the permanent solution previously approved must be installed when the DOT project is complete. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that’s what I think is appropriate.  I understand there’s going to be a cost associated with that but otherwise we just spent all the years in the SEQRA process analyzing stuff that becomes a fiction because it just otherwise will never happen and it kind of turns the process into a charade.  Again, no fault of yours but we made findings on no impact and I don’t think we can just as a permanent matter say “all right, forget about all that and go back to this really bad alternative.”  

Mr. Robert Foley stated you’re going to have a beautiful, expanded medical center, hospital center with possibly an unsafe main entrance exit. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I understand the need to do this and would support it but I think it should be modified as just said so as to make clear that this is a temporary modification. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I agree and I think we need to really craft that motion because I think it could come back to bite us if we don’t.  Let’s just take a moment, think about it.  If you have something in mind let’s just put it right on paper now, the motion that would modify it and obligate them to deal with the original situation when the funding comes through. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked given that it’s late and we’re sitting here just parsing through words, is it possible that we could approve this with the understanding that we will get to seek language from staff for what we’re approving and then the way we’ve done it for some other cases sort of approve…

Mr. John Klarl stated in essence the staff language would be that they must go act the original plan once New York State DOT allows that to occur.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated sure.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked when will we be seeing this language?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded we can get that to you in the next week.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked why don’t we do it at the special meeting.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated they probably need it before that.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked Jim what’s your timeframe?

Mr. James Vigilis responded I have to be done for your inspections by May the 1st.  

Mr. Ed Vergano asked when are you planning on starting this site work?

Mr. James Vigilis responded we’ve already started the front.  We haven’t done the roads.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think we’re approving this and we’re telling you we’re approving it.  We want the language to make sure we’re not granting a permanent change.  As soon as we see that language we’ll sign off on it. 

Mr. John Klarl stated we’ll have it in one week.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we’ll have it within a week, yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s where we are as far as the motion is concerned, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*
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NEW BUSINESS 

PB 5-10      a.
Referral from the Town Board of a proposed Draft Zoning Amendment dated February 1, 2010 with respect to changes to the Town Zoning Code Section 307-4 (Definitions), 307-14 & 15  (Table of Permitted Uses) and the addition of a new Section 307-65.5,  (Contractor’s Yards) and 307-65.6 (Specialty Trade Contractors.)

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we take this item up at our special Planning Board meetings that we’ve scheduled for April the 28th, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 6-10       b.
Application of Linda Jean Sampson & Brian Alan Eisen for Preliminary Plat Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for a 7 lot major subdivision of 5.77 acres known as “Sampson Acres” located on Lafayette Avenue, approximately 300 feet north of Greenlawn Road, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Survey, Site Plan & Subdivision for Sampson & Eisen” prepared by Matthew Noviello, P.E., P.L.S latest revision dated February 19, 2010.

Mr. John Lentini stated I’m representing Linda Sampson and Matt Noviello.  This is the resident of Linda Sampson. It was an investment property.  The father bought 6 acres and their house was off to the side.  The proposal as shown is to divide this up into 7 lots so the existing house remains on one lot and the balance of 6 lots would be developed.  The lots are all in compliance in R20 zone.  They’re bigger than R20 I believe.  The site is a little bit lighter than surrounding areas and drop from the back and I don’t believe we are going to be seriously involved in steep slopes.  We’ve had a meeting with the Technical Services and I anticipate that we will be discussing this further with them. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back, seconded.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated as I mentioned at the staff meeting the plan currently shows man holes and sewer mains that are well in excess of 20 feet deep.  We’re going to have to work on that because we can’t accept that.

Mr. John Lentini responded there was a couple of options involving the sewers one of those was the one with lower subdivision, behind them [inaudible] there’s another on Lafayette [inaudible] to go farther on that.
Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

With all in favor saying "aye." 
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ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn.
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, MAY 4, 2010

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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